MAGNOLIA

EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH

FOUNDATION

Magnolia Public Schools

Board Meeting

Date and Time
Thursday November 3, 2016 at 6:00 PM

Location
Teleconference Dial: 1.844.572.5683 Code: 1948435

AGENDA
Special Meeting of the MPS Board of Directors
Access to the Board Meeting: Any interested parties or community members from
remote locations may attend the meeting at the following school sites or the addresses
where the Board members are joining the meeting from:

Remotely by dialing in to the numbers below:

Open Session- Dial: 1.844.572.5683 Code: 1948435

* MPS Home Office 250 East 1st St. Ste 1500 Los Angeles, CA 90012 (Mr. Nguyen
Huynh)

* 1020 South Olive Street, 7th Floor Los Angeles, CA 90015 (Mrs. Noel Unterburger)
* MSA-3 1254 East Hemlock St. Carson, CA 90745 (Dr. Ali Korkmaz)

* 5113 Babette Ave Los Angeles, CA 90066 (Ms. Diane Gonzalez)

* 11935 Dorothy St. Apt 206 Los Angeles, CA 90049 (Dr. Saken

Sherkhanov)

* 1363 Ridgecrest Rd Pinole CA 94564 (Serdar Orazov)

* 495 El Camino Real Santa Clara CA 95050 (Dr. Umit Yapanel)

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and upon request,
Magnolia Public Schools may furnish reasonable auxiliary aids and services to qualified
individuals with disabilities. Individuals who require appropriate alternative
modification of the agenda in order to participate in Board meetings are invited to
contact the MPS central office. If you need special assistance to attend the meeting,
please notify Barbara Torres at (213) 628-3634 x100 to make arrangements and
accommodate your disability.

Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session of the Board which
are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Board members shall be available for
public inspection at 250 East 1st Street Los Angeles, CA 90012.

MPS Board Members:
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Ms. Noel Russell- Unterburger, President
Dr. Umit Yapanel, Secretary

Mr. Serdar Orazov, Treasurer

Dr. Saken Sherkhanov

Dr. Salih Dikbas

Dr. Ali Korkmaz

Dr. Remzi Oten

Ms. Diane Gonzalez

Mr. Nguyen Huynh

CEO & Superintendent:
Dr. Caprice Young
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Agenda

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance and Guests
B. Call the Meeting to Order
C. Public Comments

D. Approval of the Agenda

I1. Action Item

A. Ratification of Magnolia Science
Academies 1, 2, and 3 Charter

Petition Appeal to LA County of Ed.

B. (Ratify) Overview of the Process
Considering a Charter Petition
Received on Appeal; LA County of
Edu

C. (Ratify) Updated Magnolia Public
Schools Bylaws

Il1. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

Powered by BoardOnTrack
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Coversheet

Ratification of Magnolia Science Academies 1, 2, and 3 Charter
Petition Appeal to LA County of Ed.

Section: [I. Action ltem

Item: A. Ratification of Magnolia Science Academies 1, 2, and 3 Charter
Petition Appeal to LA County of Ed.

Purpose: Vote

Submitted by:

Related Material: II A Resolutions for Submission to LACOS MSa 1-3.pdf
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MAGNOLIA

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION
BOARD RESOLUTION
Resolution No. 20161103-1

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Magnolia Public Schools (MPS) has authorized the
filing of the Magnolia Science Academy-1 ("MSA-1, MSA") Charter Renewal Petition submitted to the
Los Angeles Unified School District ("LAUSD");

WHEREAS, the LAUSD Board of Education denied the renewal petition of MSA-1 on October
18, 2016;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code 4760S(j), if the governing board of a school district
denies a petition, the petitioner may elect to submit the petition for the establishment of a charter school
to the county board of education. The county board of education shall review the petition pursuant to
Education Code Section 4760S(b). If the petitioner elects to submit a petition for establishment of a
charter school to the county board of education and the county board of education denies the petition, the
petitioner may file a petition for establishment of a charter school with the state board, and the state board
may approve the petition, in accordance with Education Code Section 4760S(b);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, the Board of Directors approve the filing of the
MSA-1 charter renewal petition appeal and authorize the following individual to take all steps necessary
to seek renewal approval from the Los Angeles County Board of Education, and if the Los Angeles
County Board of Education does not approve the petition, to seek approval from the State Board of
Education:

Dr. Caprice Young, Chief Executive Officer, will serve as the "Lead Petitioner," and is hereby
authorized to sign any necessary documents and to take all steps necessary for approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors at a meeting held on November 3, 2016,
by the following vote:

AYES: NOES: ABSENT: ABSTAIN:

November 3, 2016

Dr. Umit Yapanel, Secretary MPS
Board of Directors

—
250 East 1% Street Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA, 90012 | www.magnoliapublicschools.org
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MAGNOLIA

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION
BOARD RESOLUTION
Resolution No. 20161103-2

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Magnolia Public Schools (MPS) has authorized the
filing of the Magnolia Science Academy-2 ("MSA-2") Charter Renewal Petition submitted to the Los
Angeles Unified School District ("LAUSD");

WHEREAS, the LAUSD Board of Education denied the renewal petition of MSA-2 on October
18, 2016;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code 47608(j), if the governing board of a school district
denies a petition, the petitioner may elect to submit the petition for the establishment of a charter school
to the county board of education. The county board of education shall review the petition pursuant to
Education Code Section 4760S(b). If the petitioner elects to submit a petition for establishment of a
charter school to the county board of education and the county board of education denies the petition, the
petitioner may file a petition for establishment of a charter school with the state board, and the state board
may approve the petition, in accordance with Education Code Section 4760S(b);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, the Board of Directors approve the filing of the
MSA-2 charter renewal petition appeal and authorize the following individual to take all steps necessary
to seek renewal approval from the Los Angeles County Board of Education, and if the Los Angeles
County Board of Education does not approve the petition, to seek approval from the State Board of
Education:

Dr. Caprice Young, Chicf Executive Officer, will serve as the "Lead Petitioner," and is hereby
authorized to sign any necessary documents and to take all steps necessary for approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors at a meeting held on November 3, 2016,
by the following vote:

AYES: NOES: ABSENT: ABSTAIN:

November 3, 2016

Dr. Umit Yapanel, Secretary MPS
Board of Directors

\.
250 East 1% Street Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA, 90012 | www.magnoliapublicschools.org
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MAGNOLIA

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION
BOARD RESOLUTION
Resolution No. 20161103-3

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Magnolia Public Schools (MPS) has authorized the
filing of the Magnolia Science Academy-3 ("MSA-3") Charter Renewal Petition submitted to the Los
Angeles Unified School District ("LAUSD");

WHEREAS, the LAUSD Board of Education denied the renewal petition of MSA-3 on October
18, 2016;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code 47608(j), if the governing board of a school district
denies a petition, the petitioner may elect to submit the petition for the establishment of a charter school
to the county board of education. The county board of education shall review the petition pursuant to
Education Code Section 4760S(b). If the petitioner elects to submit a petition for establishment of a
charter school to the county board of education and the county board of education denies the petition, the
petitioner may file a petition for establishment of a charter school with the state board, and the state board
may approve the petition, in accordance with Education Code Section 4760S(b);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, the Board of Directors approve the filing of the
MSA-3 charter renewal petition appeal and authorize the following individual to take all steps necessary
to seek renewal approval from the Los Angeles County Board of Education, and if the Los Angeles
County Board of Education does not approve the petition, to seek approval from the State Board of
Education:

Dr. Caprice Young, Chief Executive Officer, will serve as the "Lead Petitioner," and is hereby
authorized to sign any necessary documents and to take all steps necessary for approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors at a meeting held on November 3, 2016,
by the following vote:

AYES: NOES: ABSENT: ABSTAIN:

November 3, 2016

Dr. Umit Yapanel, Secretary MPS
Board of Directors

_\
250 East 1% Street Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA, 90012 | www.magnoliapublicschools.org
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Coversheet

(Ratify) Overview of the Process Considering a Charter Petition
Received on Appeal; LA County of Edu

Section: [I. Action ltem

Item: B. (Ratify) Overview of the Process Considering a Charter Petition
Received on Appeal; LA County of Edu

Purpose: Vote

Submitted by:

Related Material: Il B Charter Renewal Submissions to LACOE.pdf
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MAGNOLIA

PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Board Agenda Item # Agendall B
Date: November 3, 2016
To: Magnolia Board of Directors
From: Caprice Young, Ed.D., CEO & Superintendent
Staff Lead: Kelly Hourigan, Chief Operations Officer
Overview of the Process Considering a Charter Petition Received
RE: on Appeal; LA County of Education for MSA 1, 2 and 3 (Ratify)

Proposed Board Recommendation

I move that the board read, understand, and intend to adhere to the requirements outlined in the
Overview of the Process for Considering a Charter Petition Received on Appeal, Los Angeles
County Board Policies and Administrative Regulations regarding Charter Schools and the
Charter School Monitoring and Oversight Memorandum of Understanding for Magnolia Science
Academy 1, 2 and 3.

Background

Magnolia Science Academy 1, 2 and 3 are applying to the Los Angeles County Office of
Education (LACOE) on appeal. LACOE requires that the charter schools governing board take
action to approve the submitted petition and budget, approve submission of the petition to the

County board and read, understand and intend to adhere to the LACOE requirements included in
their Oversight Memorandum of Understanding.

Budget Implications
None at this time.

Name of Staff Originator:

Kelly Hourigan, Chief Operations Officer
Attachments
- Los Angeles County Office of Education Monitoring and Oversight Memorandum of

Understanding

- Overview of the Process for Considering a Charter Petition Received on Appeal

__\\_
250 E. 1" Street Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA 90012 | www.magnoliapublicschools.org
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Los Angeles County Office of Education
Charter School Office
12830 Columbia Way
Downey, CA 90242
(562) 922-8806

Overview of the Process for Considering a Charter Petition Received on Appeal

The Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE) receives and reviews petitions on behalf of the Los
Angeles County Board of Education (County Board). The appeal of a previously denied petition to establish or
renew a charter is considered to have been received when the petitioner has submitted all of the following:

1. A complete copy of the charter petition as denied by the school district board including all supporting
documents provided to the district without change or omission; budget documents; and required signatures
(not applicable to a renewal petition).

The petition to renew a charter must additionally contain documentation that the charter school met at least
one of the renewal criteria specified in Education Code (EC) 47607(b) and a reasonably comprehensive
description of how the charter school has met all new charter school requirements enacted into law after the
charter was originally granted or last renewed (California Code of Regulations, Title 5, section 11966.4).

The petitioner is responsible to provide district verification that the petition and supporting
documents submitted to the County Board are the ones on which the district board based its denial.

2. Evidence of the school district board’s action to deny the petition (e.g., meeting minutes) and its written
factual findings specific to the particular petition, setting forth specific facts to support one or more of the
grounds for denial as specified in EC 47605(b)."

3. A description of any changes to the petition necessary to reflect the County Board as the chartering entity.
The description shall be submitted as a separate document that identifies where substantive changes to the
petition may be necessary to reflect the County Board as the chartering entity based on the inherent structure
of the county office or County Board Policies (e.g., special education, dispute resolution, closure
procedures, fiscal reporting). It is not necessary to identify each technical adjustment where the name of the
district would change to the County Board or LACOE. The document should identify petition elements and
page numbers where the proposed changes would be made. Do not submit as a “redline” or “track-
changes” version of the petition.

4. Documentation that the school’s governing body has approved the petition, proposed budget and submission
of the petition to the County Board.

5. Completed and signed forms: Notice of Submission: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition and Required
Documents.: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition.

Items 1 — 5 constitute a Submission Package; receipt of all required documentation triggers the timeline
for County Board action.

Additional Documents: If the petitioner elects to submit a rebuttal to the district board’s findings, it must be
submitted with the petition. Once the petition is considered to have been received, no additional documents will
be considered unless requested by LACOE to clarify and/or substantiate the petition and/or budget content.
Additional information may be requested during the review process, especially if the school is already in
operation.

Verification Process
Prior to reviewing a petition, LACOE verifies:

1. The appeal was received within the statutory timelines: (A) The appeal of a denied petition to establish a
charter must be received within 180 calendar days of the district’s denial action; (B) The appeal of a denied
petition to renew a charter must be received within 30 calendar days of the district’s denial action.

"If a district board denies a petition to establish or renew a charter without written findings of fact the County Board will not hear the
appeal.

Revised 3/25/16 Appeals: Page 1 of 6
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Los Angeles County Office of Education
Charter School Office

2. The submitted petition (including budgets and all supporting documents) is the same one acted on by the
local district.

3. The authenticity of petition signatures: (A) Teacher signatories must have been meaningfully interested in
and qualified to work at the charter at the time of signature; (B) Parent signatories had children who were or
would be eligible to attend the charter; and (C) Signatories had the opportunity to review the petition.

4. The submission complies with statutory and regulatory requirements. If LACOE determines the petitioner
has not submitted all required documents, the petitioner will be given the option of withdrawing and
resubmitting the petition or informing LACOE that it should complete the review based on documents
submitted. LACOE shall inform the petitioner of the applicable statutory and regulatory timelines and
permissible extensions of those timelines to support the petitioner in making an informed decision. LACOE
submits requests for timeline extensions to the County Board for action.

Review Process

LACOE utilizes a review protocol to evaluate petitions. The protocol is based on the model and standards
developed by the California Department of Education (CDE). It has been modified to reflect the County Board
as the authorizer.

In the case of a renewal, LACOE will also determine whether the charter school has met at least one (1) of the
criteria specified in EC 47607(b) and that the petition reflects changes to law since the charter was first
authorized or last renewed. When considering a petition for renewal, the County Board will consider the past
performance of the school with regard to academics, finance, and operation in evaluating the likelihood of
success along with any evidence of future plans for improvement (California Code of Regulations, Title 5,
section 11966.5(c)(1)).

In addition to reviewing the petition and supporting documents, LACOE reviews publicly available information
regarding the school (in the case of a renewal), the petitioners, and other schools the petitioners have been
associated with. Information reviewed includes school level data available through the CDE DataQuest website,
as well as other publicly available documents such as news articles and financial audits.

Capacity Interview

LACOE interviews the governing board and leadership team to help determine if the board has the capacity to
govern the school and the leadership team has the background necessary to implement and maintain the charter.
Information from the interview is included in the staff report.

Presentations to the County Board (Board Meeting Dates)
The County Board typically considers a petition at two (2) separate regularly scheduled meetings:

1. Public Hearing — Held within 30 calendar days of receipt of a Submission Package. It is the petitioner's
opportunity to demonstrate support for the charter and provide an overview of the school’s proposed
educational program including the school’s mission, the educational design and how the proposed school
will fulfill the legislative intent of the Charter Schools Act (EC 47601).

2. Staff Report on Findings of Fact and County Board Action — Held within 60 calendar days of receipt of a
Submission Package unless both parties agree to an extension of up to 30 days. (The request for an
extension must be made prior to the County Board taking a vote to approve or deny the charter petition.)
The petitioner may address the County Board, and the County Board may ask questions of LACOE staff and
the petitioner.

The County Board typically meets the first three (3) Tuesdays of the month. The County Board calendar is
available at http.//www.lacoe.edu/Portals/0/Board/Online%20Calendar. pdf.

Revised 03/25/16 Appeals: Page 2 of 6
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Los Angeles County Office of Education
Charter School Office

Notification

LACOE notifies the petitioner in writing when (1) the Submission Package is received; (2) the date/time of the
Capacity Interview are set; and (3) the dates of the Public Hearing, Report, and Board Action are established.

Please review the documents entitled Notice of Submission: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition and Required
Documents: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition for further information regarding submitting a petition on
appeal.

Petitioners may contact the Charter School Office (CSO) at (562) 922-8806 for additional information.

Revised 03/25/16 Appeals: Page 3 of 6
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Los Angeles County Office of Education
Charter School Office
12830 Columbia Way

Downey, CA 90242

(562) 922-8806

Notice of Submission: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition
(3 To Renew a Charter

O To Establish a Charter

Submit form with petition documents

Name of Charter School:

Please print or type

Contact Information:
Name of lead petitioner(s)/relationship to
charter school:

Name of lead contact (if not petitioner):

Address:

Telephone number(s):

FAX number:
Email:
School Information:
Proposed enrollment:
Proposed grade levels:
Proposed opening date:
Proposed or actual school location/address:

If more than one site, provide main site here &
attach a list of additional site addresses.

Notice of Appeal:

Signature of lead petitioner(s):

Date:

Revised 03/25/16

Street

City

State/Zip code

Office

Mobile

First year:

Fully implemented:

First year:

Fully implemented:

Street

City

State/Zip code

Powered by BoardOnTrack
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Submission Package: Submit one (1) set of the following required documents to the Los Angeles County

Magnolia Public Schools - Board Meeting - Agenda - Thursday November 3, 2016 at 6:00 PM

Los Angeles County Office of Education
Charter School Office

Required Documents: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition
O To Establish a Charter (0 To Renew a Charter

Office of Education (LACOE) Charter School Office.

Check items submitted and submit this form with petition documents

(0 1. Completed and signed Notice of Submission: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition Form

(J 2. Completed and signed Required Documents: Appeal of a Denied Charter Petition Form

(J Table of Contents for Sections I — VII

Section I

(3 1.1 Evidence of the school board’s action of denial (letter and/or board minutes)

(J 1.2 School board’s written Findings of Fact specific to the denied petition

(J 1.3 Petitioner’s response to Findings of Fact (optional)

(J 1.4 Evidence the school’s governing body approved submission of the petition to the County Board
Section 11

(J A separate narrative containing a description of changes to the petition necessary to reflect the County
Board as the authorizer (e.g., special education, dispute resolution, closure procedures, fiscal reporting).
Indicate page numbers and elements of changes. Do not submit as redline or “track-change” petition.

Section I1I

(J 1.1 Complete copy of charter petition as denied by local school board (verified by the district)

(J 1I1.2 All supporting documents to the petition submitted to the district

(J I3 Signature page of interested parents or teachers with complete contact information (not applicable
if a renewal petition)

Section IV

[ [IV.1 Proposed first year operational budget including start-up costs, cash-flow and assumptions as
denied by the local district board

(J 1V.2 Financial projections for the first three (3) years of operation

(J 1V.3 Copies of the three (3) most recent Independent Financial Audit(s) of 501(c)(3) (if applicable)

(J 1V.4 Fiscal Policies approved by the governing board.

(3 IV.5 General Ledger for both the non-profit entity holding the charter and the school for the three (3)
months prior to petition submission to local district

(OJ 1V.6 Debt Schedule (including total principal, interest due and term of debt)

(J 1V.7 Bank Statements for the three (3) months prior to petition submission to local district

(J IV.8 CMO Contracts and/or Contracts exceeding $5,000 annually

(J 1V.9 Public Charter Schools Grant Program application and budget (if applicable)

Section V

(J V.1 Resumes for the petitioner(s) and members of the Board of Directors (if not included in petition)

Revised 3/25/16 Appeals: Page 5 of 6
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Los Angeles County Office of Education
Charter School Office

Section VI

(J VL1 Bylaws of 501(c)(3) (if school operated as/by a nonprofit and not included in petition)

(J VI.2 Atrticles of Incorporation of 501(c)(3) (if school operated as/by a nonprofit and not in petition)
Section VII

(J VIL1 Lease/Rental Agreement(s) or Similar Documents (if not included in petition)

(J VIL2 Certificate(s) of Occupancy (if not included in petition)

Directions: Submit all documents simultaneously in a loose-leaf (3-ring) binder with numbered dividers
inserted between sections. Copies are to be single-sided. Also submit an electronic copy of items 1 —2, Table of
Contents, and Sections I — VII via CD or Flash Drive. Items 1 — 2 may be combined as one file; Table of
Contents and each section shall be submitted as separate files. Submit Section III as three (3) separate files
(IIL.1, 1I1.2, II1.3). Submit Section IV as eight (8) separate files; budgets as unlocked spreadsheets.

Once LACOE verifies that all required documents have been submitted, it will notify the petitioner in writing.
The petitioner shall have no less than five (5) working days to submit 13 collated, two-sided (back-to-back),
three-hole punched, rubber banded copies of Sections I through VII.

LACOE reserves the right to request additional documents and information as necessary to provide the County
Board with a complete understanding of the proposed charter.

LACOE will conduct a facilities inspection as part of the petition review process or prior to opening, if
authorized.

Required Certification

Submission of a petition and this signed document certifies that:

1. The governing board has taken action to approve the submitted petition and budget.

2. The governing board has taken action to approve submission of the petition to the County Board.

3. The governing board and lead petitioner(s) have read, understand, and intend to adhere to the
requirements outlined in this document, the Overview of the Process for Considering a Charter Petition
Received on Appeal*; Los Angeles County Board Policies and Administrative Regulations regarding
Charter Schools**; and the Charter School Monitoring and Oversight Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU)***,

Printed name of board signatory:

Signature of board signatory: Date:

Printed name of lead petitioner(s):

Signature of lead petitioner(s): Date:

*Please review the document, Overview of the Process for Considering a Charter Petition Received on
Appeal or contact the Charter School Office for additional information.

**Los Angeles County Board Policies and Regulations are available at
http://gamutonline.net/district/lacoe/PolicyCategoryList/2422/0

***The Charter School Monitoring and Oversight MOU is available at
http://www.lacoe.edu/Portals/0/LACOE/CharterSchools/MOU_Template FINAL 3-2016.pdf

Revised 03/25/16 Appeals: Page 6 of 6
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Los Angeles County Office of Education
Monitoring and Oversight Memorandum of Understanding’
Name Charter School
Charter Authorization Period: Month Date, Year — Month, Date, Year

Charter Type:[JAppeal of Denied Petition (EC § 47605) [1Establish [1Renew
CIDirect to County Board (EC § 47605.5) [lEstablish [JRenew

[(JCountywide Petition to County Board (EC § 47605.6) [JEstablish [JRenew

INTRODUCTION

The Los Angeles County Board of Education (hereinafter “County Board”) is guided by the intent of the
legislature, that quality charter schools are and should be an integral part of the California educational
system. The County Board believes that charter schools provide an opportunity to implement
accountability-based school-level reform, support innovation which improves student learning, and
provide choice for parents. Charter schools operate under the provisions of the charter, applicable state
and federal laws, and the general oversight of the County Board.

The County Board supports this effort by establishing a defined accountability system for determining
the effectiveness of the charter schools it authorizes. Charter schools are public schools; as such, their
performance is subject to review and comparison with any other publicly funded school. A charter
school’'s demographic composition should reflect the community it serves and in which it is located.

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The State of California enacted the Charter Schools Act of 1992 authorizing the creation of charter
schools with the intent that the schools improve student learning through a variety of means, including
increased learning opportunities, innovative teaching methods, expanded choice for parents and pupils,
and performance-based accountability.

Education Code (EC) § 47605 requires a charter petition to provide a “reasonably comprehensive
description” of the manner in which the school will operate; it is not a comprehensive document. An
agreement is a useful tool for clarifying the expectations, operations, and responsibilities of both parties
beyond that which is required in the charter but is required for successful operation and monitoring of a
charter school.

The County Board has established this Monitoring and Oversight Memorandum of Understanding
(“Agreement”) to address matters not covered in the charter in order to clarify monitoring and oversight
expectations and responsibilities. The Charter School Act allows the County Board to authorize charter
schools under specified circumstances and by doing so, becomes the authorizing agency of the charter
schools. The County Board has delegated to the County Superintendent of Schools (Superintendent),
its obligation to oversee its authorized charter schools under the terms of this Agreement the provisions
of the school’s charter, applicable laws, regulations, and County Board Policy and Administrative
Regulations. The County Board reserves the right and authority to modify any decision made by the
Superintendent, Los Angeles County Office of Education (hereinafter “LACOE”) or a designee.

The fundamental interest of LACOE is, on a continuing basis, to be reasonably assured that charter
schools authorized by the County Board are:

' Adapted from the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) utilized by the State Board of Education. This agreement reflects
changes made for the Los Angeles County Board of Education as the authorizer.

Powered by BoardOnTrack
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¢ Implementing the provisions of the charter as approved
e Adhering to all federal, state, and local laws and regulations that apply to the charter school.
e Being operated prudently in all respects

e Providing a sound education pursuant to EC § 47605(b)(5)(A)(i-iii) including any future changes
and the California Core Content Standards for all of their students

LACOE will report periodically (annually or as requested or when necessary) to the County Board
regarding its delegated oversight of the Name Charter School (hereinafter, “Charter School”).

The County Board recognizes that there are matters related to the operation of the Charter School and
to the effective oversight of the Charter School by LACOE that go beyond the provisions included in the
school’s charter. The County Board also acknowledges that the day-to-day operation of the Charter
School is appropriately carried out by the Charter School's leadership, faculty, and staff. This
Agreement is intended to address those matters that have not been covered in the charter and to
provide guidance on the oversight policies and procedures of the County Board, as carried out by
LACOE. Further, this Agreement is intended to outline the parties’ agreement governing their
respective fiscal and administrative responsibilities and their legal relationships.

The Charter School petition and this signed Agreement, which includes:
e Attachment A: Student Achievement Plan Guidelines
¢ Attachment B: Fiscal Oversight Requirements and Financial Reporting
e Attachment C: Reporting Timeline (as revised yearly)

e Attachment D: County Board Action to Approve the Charter including Conditions for Approval
constitutes the conditions and terms under which the charter shall be monitored. To the extent
that the terms in the charter vary from the provisions of this Agreement, the Agreement shall
take precedence unless both parties agree to other terms.

The Charter School agrees that violation of a specific material provision of this Agreement is conclusive
proof that the Charter School has violated the conditions of the charter within the meaning of EC §
47607(c)(1). The Charter School further agrees that it waives any right to argue that this Agreement is
not enforceable or that violation of this Agreement is not a violation of the charter in any court,
administrative body, or before a mediator or arbitrator in any matter involving this charter.

TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall commence on the date upon which it is fully executed by all parties and shall
cover the term of the charter. This Agreement between LACOE and the Charter School is inclusive of
Attachments A through D.

Any modification of this Agreement must be in writing and executed by duly authorized representatives
of the parties.

1. The duly authorized representatives of the Charter School are the governing board president,
CEO/Director or Principal of the Charter School or designee.

2. The duly authorized representative of the County Board is the County Superintendent of
Schools or designee. For purposes of material revisionfamendments to the charter, such
revisions/amendments may only be made upon the approval of the Charter School’s governing
board, and will take effect only if approved by the County Board.

This Agreement shall be reviewed at least annually and may be amended or augmented by addendum
at any time with mutual agreement. In the case of changes in law or County Board policy, the County
Board and the Charter School reserve the right to request. modifications to this Agreement. Such
modifications, if agreed upon, shall be included as Addenda to this Agreement. Failure to reach
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agreement on required changes to the Agreement which result in a violation of law will result in
termination of the Agreement and lead to termination or revocation of the charter. The approved
Agreement (including any subsequent addenda) shall continue unless modified in writing. If the Charter
School becomes non-operational for any reason, this Agreement (including any addenda) shall remain
in effect until closure procedures have been completed. The term of the charter automatically expires if
the Charter School becomes non-operational, because of non-renewal, revocation, or closure.

TERM OF THE CHARTER

The Charter School is a public school that is or shall be operating pursuant to a charter (hereinafter the
“charter”). On Month Date, Year, the County Board took action to approve the charter contingent upon
the conditions specified in its action (Attachment D). Any condition of authorization that was not met
through revision of the Charter may be addressed in this Agreement.

e The Charter School shall operate as a classroom based and/or nonclassroom-based charter
school within the geographic boundaries of NAME OF DISTRICT in the county of Los Angeles
in accordance with EC § 47605 and/or EC § 47605.1 as applicable.

e The Charter School shall serve grades X-XX and shall have an approximate enrollment of TO
BE SPECIFIED BASED ON THE CHARTER.

e The Charter School will commence its first year of operation between July 1 and September 30,
20XX (Not applicable for renewals).

e The Charter School shall have a NUMBER (X) year term to expire on June 30, Year. The
provisions of the charter and the Agreement shall be aligned.

The Charter School shall be responsible for all the functions of a charter school subject to applicable
statutes, the terms and conditions set forth in the charter, and this Agreement.

The County Board reserves the right to approve material revisions to the charter as authorized and/or
revoke the charter as specified in EC § 47607.

This Agreement is subject to termination during its term as specified by law or as set forth in this
Agreement.

SECTION 1: GOVERNANCE AND ORGANIZATIONAL MANAGEMENT

The Charter School will be/is operated by Name of Nonprofit, a nonprofit public benefit corporation,
formed and organized pursuant to the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law (Corporations Code §
5110 et seq.) (Unless the charter is operated by another entity or LACOE, in which case the following
sentence may need to be amended). The Charter School is a separate legal entity and neither the
County Board nor LACOE is liable for the debts and obligations of the Charter School so long as the
County Board has provided oversight in accordance with EC § 47604(c). The County Board reserves
the right to appoint a single representative to the Charter School's Board of Directors pursuant to EC
47604(b). The Charter School shall use all revenue received from state and federal sources only for the
educational services specified in the charter and this Agreement for the benefit of the students enrolled
in and attending the Charter School. Other sources of funding must be used in accordance with
applicable state and federal statutes, and the terms or conditions of any grant or donation.

1.1 Organization

The Charter School shall have a phone number and e-mail address posted on its website and shall
update the posting immediately whenever the information changes. The Charter School's website shall
also identify the authorizing entity as the Los Angeles County Board of Education. Prior to opening,
annually and upon revision, the Charter School shall provide LACOE with the following information in
accordance with Attachment C, Reporting Timeline, and as updated:

Powered by BoardOnTrack

19 of 62



125
126

127
128

129
130

131

132
133
134

135
136
137
138

139
140
141
142
143

144
145
146

147
148
149

150
151

152

153
154
155

156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167

168
169

Magnolia Public Schools - Board Meeting - Agenda - Thursday November 3, 2016 at 6:00 PM

Revised March 2016

e Contact information, including phone numbers, official addresses and e-mail addresses for the
principal contacts for the Charter School and ensure that this information is kept current.

e Organization chart displaying relationship between governing board and the Charter School
leadership.

¢ Immediate written notice (within 10 calendar days) of any changes in the Charter School’s
directors, officers, and administrators, and provide resumes for the new individuals.

1.2 Governing Board Establishment

Prior to opening, annually, and upon revision, the Charter School shall provide to LACOE the following
information; the Charter School shall also have the information posted on its website at all times the
Charter School is operational and shall update the information within 30 days of any changes:

e Articles of Incorporation

e Bylaws approved by the governing board

e Conflict of Iinterest Policy

e Roster and resumes of current governing board members

The Charter School shall provide to LACOE’s Director of Internal Audit and Analysis, (who serves as
the filing officer), annually (except where noted otherwise in Attachment C, Reporting Timeline) and as
updated Assuming Office, Leaving Office, and Annual Filings for the Statement of Economic Interests,
Form 700 for all designated filers pursuant to the Conflict of Interest Code of the Los Angeles County
Office of Education in a timely manner as follows:

e Assuming Office Statements (i.e., Form 700) — within 30 calendar days of a designated filer
assuming the responsibilities for the Charter School for the position the designated filer is
submitting a Form 700.

e Leaving Office Statements (i.e.,, Form 700) — within 30 calendar days of a designated filer no
longer having responsibilities for the Charter School for the position the designated filer
submitted an Assuming Office Form 700; and

e Annual Statement — by the annual deadline established by the Fair Political Practices
Commission each year, which is typically April 1.

1.3 Governing Board Activities

A. Calendar: The Charter School shall provide an annual calendar of regular meetings of the governing
board, including a description of how students, parents, and community members shall be notified of
meetings.

B. Governing Board Meetings: The governing board of the Charter School shall conduct public
meetings included on the annual calendar at such intervals as are necessary to ensure that the board is
providing sufficient direction to the Charter School through implementation of effective board policies
and procedures. Governing board meetings shall be conducted in keeping with the requirements of the
Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code § 54950 - 54962). Governing board adopted policies, meeting
agendas and minutes shall be maintained and available for public inspection and during site visits. For
all regular and special meetings of the governing board and all standing committee meetings, the
Charter School shall provide LACOE with written notification of the meeting, including a copy of the
posted agenda, and shall be posted on the Charter School's website no less than 72 hours prior to a
regular meeting and no less than 24 hours prior to a special meeting. The posted agenda shall contain
a description of where the agenda was posted and that the meeting is held in compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act.

Within ten (10) working days of board meetings, the Charter School shall provide LACOE with an audio
recording of the meeting and all materials provided to the governing board by its administration,
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contractors, or the public including approved previous meeting minutes. Once approved by the Charter
School’s governing board, the Charter School shall provide LACOE with a copy of the minutes of the
meeting within ten (10) calendar days. All policies, policy changes, and approved meeting minutes shall
be posted on the Charter School's website no more than 30 days after each meeting.

C. Brown Act Training: The Charter School shall provide Brown Act training to its governing board
members and administrative staff prior to the execution of any duties. The Charter School shall certify
to LACOE annually or after any changes in governing board members or administrative staff that the
Brown Act training was provided.

D. Governing Board Policies: Prior to opening, the governing board shall develop and adopt policies
and procedures to guide the operation of the Charter School, including but not limited to, policies in the
following areas. The policies shall comply with law and be aligned to the approved charter. A copy of
these policies and procedures shall be submitted to LACOE no less than 30 days prior to opening,
annually, and upon revision. All policies and procedures are subject to review during site visits. Policies
identified with an asterisk shall be posted on the Charter School's website at all times the Charter
School is operational; the website will be updated within 30 days of any revision.

e *Conflicts of Interest Policy: If it has not already done so for the current year, at the first meeting
of the Charter School's governing board, following receipt of the MOU and each July thereafter,
the Charter School's governing board shall: (1) adopt a conflict of interest policy, including
provisions related to nepotism, for itself and the Charter School’'s employees and contractors to
ensure that no action taken by an individual or organization covered by the policy results in
actual or apparent conflicts of interest; (2) provide verification that all board members and
designated Charter School management employees (i.e., Form 700 filers) have participated in
conflict of interest training; and (3) take action to comply with the Political Reform Act and its
implementing regulations, including adoption of the Conflict of Interest Code of the Los Angeles
County Office of Education. Where the filing requirements for the authorizing entity and the
Charter School are discrepant with regard to designated filing positions and/or assigned
disclosure categories, the requirements of the authorizing entity shall prevail. The Charter
Schoo! shall follow the Political Reform Act, the California Corporation Code, and IRS
regulations.

e *Internal Fiscal Control Policies: The Charter School shall develop and maintain internal fiscal
control policies governing all financial activities that are approved by the governing board. The
charter school shall submit these policies to LACOE no later than 30 days prior to opening
and within 10 days of governing board approval whenever the policies are revised

o Adherence to County Board of Education Policy and Requlation: At the first governing board
meeting of the Charter School following receipt of the MOU and each July thereafter, the
governing board of the Charter School shall review and acknowledge in its board minutes that it
shall adhere to all policies and regulations pertaining to charter schools that have been adopted
by the Los Angeles County Board of Education and Superintendent, as long as the policies do
not conflict with Education Code. All new and/or revised policies and procedures will be posted
on the Charter School’'s website no more than 14 days after their adoption. Updated policies
and regulations are available to the Charter School on our website www.lacoe.edu.

e Criminal Background Check Policies: These policies shall set the school's standards for
employment, volunteering, vendors, and contractors.

e *Educational and Admissions Policies: These policies include admissions, enroliment, and
lottery process; electronic device use; special education; homeless and foster youth;
independent study; requirements for graduation and for the Certificate of Completion (as
applicable)?.

2 if these policies are incorporated into documents that are posted on the Charter School’s website, the posting of those
documents is sufficient, it is the Charter School’s responsibility to identify the document location.
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*Uniform Complaint _Procedures: Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP), approved by the

Charter School’s governing board, shall be posted at all of the Charter School’s sites, in a place
available for public viewing and on its website. Complaint procedures shall identify the Los
Angeles County Board of Education as the authorizer, and provide the telephone number to the
LACOE Charter School Office and the LACOE website (www.lacoe.edu).

*Health Policies: Policies related to absences, illness, medications, blood borne pathogens,

immunization requirements, for providing emergency medical services, establishing the Section
504 Accommodation Plan.

*Comprehensive School Safety Policies: Policies that provide for a safe learning environment

for all pupils. Policies shall include but are not limited to those areas specified and/or associated
with EC 32280-32289, as described in Section 1.4(B) of this document.

*Parent/Student Handbook: The governing board shall approve the Parent/Student Handbook to

ensure it complies with law and is aligned with the Charter School's board-approved policies
and authorized charter. The governing board shall ensure that it is distributed in hard copy to all
families each year, to new enrollees during registration, and upon request, and that it is at all
times available online. At a minimum, the handbook shall include detailed expectations for
student attendance, behavior, and discipline, including policies and consequences for bullying
and harassment, due process rights related to discipline (including suspension, expulsion, and
special education), and should include policies regarding dress code, student fees and field
trips, and the school calendar and bell schedule. Also, a description of complaint procedures
that parents may pursue in the event of disagreements, Independent Study and graduation
and/or Certificates of Completion requirements. An annual parent meeting shall be held to
inform parents regarding polices. The handbook shall be translated into language(s) most
represented in the Charter School.

Employee Handbook: The governing board shall approve the Employee Handbook to ensure it

complies with law and is aligned with the Charter School's board-approved policies and
authorized charter. The governing board shall ensure that it is distributed in hard copy to each
employee at the time of their hire and each year at the beginning of the school year. At a
minimum, the handbook shall include detailed expectations for standard rules of behavior,
employee performance, employee problem solving, due process rights of employees related to
disciplinary actions including termination, compensation and benefit information, and a
description of both formal and informal complaint procedures, discrimination and harassment,
workplace security, drug and alcohol policies, at-will employment (if applicable), confidentiality,
electronic communications, family and medical leave and employee benefits.

Amendments to the employee handbook may be made and distributed to employees by the
Charter School during the year. A copy of the handbook may be reviewed during site visits.

1.4 Administration

A. Enrollment and Admissions Documentation: The Charter School shall maintain on file and provide to

LACOE upon request the following information:

Descriptions of outreach and recruitment activities that have been conducted to reach target
populations as described in the charter

Procedures for application, enrollment, admission, wait listing and lotteries for placement
(enroliment preferences) as described in the charter

Evidence of enrollment preferences consistent with the charter and with LACOE conditions of
operation

Copy of application and enroliment forms and information provided to prospective families
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Documentation, while pertinent, that start-up enroliment is consistent with enroliment numbers
described in the charter

Evidence that each student is a resident of California in accordance with EC § 47612

For students over 18, evidence that each student has been continuously enrolled (no break in
enrollment greater than 20 school days) in an educational program and is making satisfactory
progress toward completion of a high school diploma

B. Health and Safety Plans: Prior to opening, annually, and upon revision, the Charter School shall

provide to LACOE, and have posted on the Charter School’s website, a copy of its Health and Safety
Plans as follows:

A copy of its health plan for students and employees including policies and procedures related
to absences, illness, medications, blood borne pathogens, immunization requirements, plan for
providing emergency medical services, establishing a Section 504 Accommodation Plan, and
health/mental health services available at and/or through the Charter School.

A copy of its Comprehensive School Safety Plan that addresses all components of EC § 32280-
32289.

Student Discipline including a list of offenses for which students may be given detention, or may
and must be suspended or expelled, the procedures for suspension or expulsion, procedures by
which parents and students shall be informed about reasons for suspension or expulsion, and of
their due process rights in regard to the disciplinary action.

Campus Supervision and Visitors including supervision of students before and after school,
while on campus, and student drop-off and pick-up; policies related to visitors on campus,
entering and leaving the campus.

Child_Abuse Reporting including procedures consistent with Article 2.5 (commencing with
Section 11164) of Chapter 2 of Title 1 of Part 4 of the Penal Code. The policy should include a
timeline for the annual training of mandated reporters and the process to be used by staff for
reporting suspected child abuse to the appropriate authorities.

Teacher Notification of Dangerous Students including procedures to be used to notify teachers
of dangerous pupils pursuant to EC 49079.

Discrimination and Harassment consistent with the prohibition of discrimination contained in EC
Part 1, Chapter 2 (commencing with section 200). The policy should include how the information
will be communicated to stakeholder groups and how related complaints may be filed.

Dress Code including school-wide dress code, pursuant to EC 35183, that prohibits pupils from
wearing “gang-related apparel” or other items that, if worn on a school campus, could be
reasonably determined to threaten the health and safety of the school environment.

Safe and Orderly Environment including procedures designed to ensure a safe and orderly
environment conducive to learning at the school in accordance with EC § 32282(a)(2)(H).

Code of Conduct for all students clearly stating the responsibilities of students, teachers, and
administrators in maintaining a classroom environment that allows a teacher to communicate
effectively with all students in the class, allows all students to learn, has consequences that are
fair and age-appropriate, considers the student and circumstances and is enforced accordingly.

Anti-Bullying including procedures aimed at the prevention of bullying, including cyber bullying,
to be developed in accordance with AB 9 and that include clear procedures for reporting
incidents of bullying or harassment.

Disaster/Emergency Response Plan including the protective measures and procedures to be
followed in the event of a natural disaster or other incident that threatens the health and safety
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of students and staff (ex. earthquake, fire, bomb threat or intruders on campus). Procedures
should include accommodations for pupils with disabilities and information to parents on the
student release process.

The section of the plan that addresses intruders on campus, bomb threats and other information
that would compromise the Charter School’s security should not be included in the website
posting.

e Evidence that staff has been trained in health, safety, and emergency procedures.
e A calendar of emergency drills for students.

The Charter School shall provide training for staff in responding to emergencies and conduct routine
emergency response drills for its students.

C. Notice to Parents/Guardians: Annually, the Charter School shall provide to LACOE a copy of the
annual notice sent to all parents/guardians regarding their rights under the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Acts (FERPA).

If the Charter School receives Title | funding, parent notice shall provide information regarding the
federal Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), including the right to request and receive essential
information about the professional and qualifications of the teacher(s) instructing their child.

At all times the Charter School is operational, it shall post on its website and in the school’s
office(s), a notice that the Charter School is authorized by the Los Angeles County Board of
Education and the contact telephone number for the Los Angeles County Office of Education,
Charter School Office.

D. Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): Employees of the Charter School who have a
legitimate educational interest are entitied to access students education records under 20 U.S.C.A. §
12329, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and EC § 49076(b)(6). The Charter
Schooal, its officers and employees shall comply with FERPA at all times. In addition, it is agreed that
LACOE has an educational interest in the educational records of the Charter School such that LACOE
shall have access to those records for reasons that include, but are not limited to, records requests,
complaints, and school closure. Records at a minimum, shall include emergency contact information,
health and immunization data, attendance summaries, and academic performance data from the
statewide student assessments required pursuant to EC §§ 60605 and 60851.

E. Criminal Record Summaries:

e Department of Justice (DOJ) Clearance: Prior to hiring any employee, the Charter School must
obtain an Originating Agency Identifier (ORI) and receive approval of its designated Custodian
of Records from the DOJ for the purposes of processing all school employees for DOJ
clearance. Obtaining an ORI cannot be done prior to having obtained a school location.

e All employees of the Charter School, parent and non-parent volunteers who will be performing
services that are not under the direct supervision of a certificated teacher, and onsite vendors
and contractors having unsupervised contact with students shall submit to background checks
and fingerprinting in accordance with EC §§ 44237 and 45125.1. The Charter School shall
maintain documentation, and provide to LACOE upon request, that all employees, volunteers,
and vendors (as applicable) have clear criminal records summaries prior to their having any
unsupervised contact with students. The Charter School shall maintain on file and have
available for inspection during site visits, evidence that the Charter School has performed
criminal background checks for all employees and volunteers (as applicable) and
documentation that vendors have conducted required criminal background checks for their
employees prior to any unsupervised contact with students. The Charter school shall provide
certification to LACOE that all employees and volunteers/vendors (as applicable) have cleared a
criminal background check prior to any unsupervised contact with students.
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e Any visitor to the Charter School shall wear an appropriate identification badge while at the
Charter School.

F. Data Reporting: The Charter School shall directly report data to the California Department of
Education (CDE) meeting all required deadlines. These reporting engines include, but are not limited to,
the California School Information Service (CSIS), the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data
System (CALPADS), the Consolidated Application (ConApp), and the CDE charter school database.

Some of the specific documents to be submitted are as follows:

e Charter School Annual Information Survey
¢ Local Educational Plan (LEA) Plan

e Federal Cash Management

e Consolidated Application

A copy of the Consolidated Application, as approved by the school’s governing board, and sent to CDE,
shall be submitted to the Charter School Office annually and upon revision.

G. The School Accountability Report Card (SARC): On or before the date determined by the CDE each
year, the Charter School shall post its SARC on the Charter School’s website. The Charter School may,
but is not required to, use the template developed by the CDE and available
at http://www.cde.ca.qov/talac/sa as a guide. The Charter School shall include all elements as
determined by the CDE. If the Charter School does not maintain a school website, it shall print and
make copies of the SARC available to parents and other members of the community and provide CDE
with a copy of the SARC to post on its website. If the Charter School posts the SARC on its website,
and receives a request for a copy, it shall provide the copy at no charge.

H. Insurance and Risk Management: Before any individuals are employed, or property or facilities are
acquired or leased, the Charter School shall procure from an insurance carrier licensed to do business
in the State of California, or shall otherwise participate in a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) or other self-
insurance pool consistent with Government Code § 6528 and keep in full force during the term of the
charter, no less than the following insurance coverage:

e Commercial General Liability, including Fire Legal Liability (Fire Legal Liability is only required
for rented premises the tenant occupies), coverage of $5,000,000 per Occurrence and in the
Aggregate. The policy shall be endorsed to name the Los Angeles County Office of Education
and the County Board of Education ("County Board") as named additional insured and shall
provide specifically that any insurance carried by the District which may be applicable to any
claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the Charter School's insurance shall be primary
despite any conflicting provisions in the Charter School’s policy. Coverage shall be maintained
with no Self Insured Retention above $15,000 without the prior written approval of the Office of
Risk Management for the LACOE.

e Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code
adequate to protect the Charter School from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant
to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation
Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of
$1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.

e Commercial Auto Liability, including Owned, Leased, Hired, and Non-owned, coverage with
limits of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the Charter School does not
operate a student bus service. If the Charter School provides student bus services, the required
coverage limit is $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.

e Fidelity Bond coverage shall be maintained by the Charter School to cover all Charter School
employees who handle, process or otherwise have responsibility for Charter School funds,
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supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be $50,000 per
occurrence, with no self-insured retention.

e Professional Educators Errors and Omissions liability coverage with minimum limits of
$3,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 general aggregate.

e Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage with minimum limits of $5,000,000 per occurrence and
$5,000,000 general aggregate. Coverage may be held as a separate policy or included by
endorsement in the Commercial General Liability or the Errors and Omissions Policy.

e Employment Practices Legal Liability coverage with limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence and
$3,000,000 general aggregate.

e Property Damage Liability replacement value limits sufficient to protect the school's assets.

Coverage’s and limits of insurance may be accomplished through individual primary policies or through
a combination of primary and excess policies. The policy shall be endorsed to name the Los Angeles
County Office of Education and the County Board of Education as named additional insured’s and shall
provide specifically that any insurance carried by LACOE which may be applicable to any
claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the Charter School’s insurance shall be primary
despite any conflicting provisions in the Charter School's policy.

The Charter School shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to LACOE prior to opening, annually
and upon revision, its insurance carrier(s) and inform LACOE immediately if the coverage becomes
inoperative for any reason. LACOE may request to see evidence of insurance coverage during site
visits.

Certificates of insurance shall be mailed to:

Los Angeles County Office of Education
Insurance Compliance
P. O. Box 12010-LA
Hemet, CA 52546-8010

In addition, the Charter School shall institute risk management policies and practices to address
reasonably foreseeable occurrences and provide LACOE with evidence of such policies and practices
on an annual basis.

The Charter School shall hold harmless, defend, indemnify, and name on the Certificate of Insurance
as additional insureds the County Board, LACOE, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers, from
every liability, claim, or demand which may be made by reason of (1) any injury to volunteers; and (2)
any injury to person or property sustained by any person, firm, or corporation caused by any act,
neglect, default, or omission of the Charter School, its officers, employees or agents. In cases of such
liabilities, claims, or demands, the Charter School at its own expense and risk shall defend all legal
proceedings which may be brought against it and/or the County Board, LACOE, its officers,
agents, -employees, and volunteers, and satisfy any resulting judgments up to the required amounts
that may be rendered against any of them. Certificates of insurance and policies shall name the County
Board, LACOE, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers, as additional insureds with respect to
any potential tort liability irrespective of whether such potential liability might be predicted on theories of
negligence, strict liability, or products liability. The certificates and endorsements are to be signed by a
person employed and authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf and shall specifically
reference this Contract. The certificates of insurance and endorsements are to be received by LACOE
within thirty (30) calendar days of full execution of this Contract. LACOE reserves the right to require
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time.

|. Exclusive Employer: The Charter School is deemed the exclusive employer of the employees of the
Charter School for the purposes of the Educational Employee Relations Act (EERA) under Government
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Code § 3540, et seq. The Charter School shall have sole responsibility for employment, management,
dismissal, and discipline of its employees.

J. Employee Contracts or Agreements: Prior to opening, annually, and upon revision, the Charter
School shall provide to LACOE a sample copy of the employee contract that, at a minimum, states that
the Charter School is the exclusive employer of employees and has sole responsibility for employment,
management, dismissal, and discipline of its employees. Employee contracts, for each type of
employee, shall be available for review by LACOE upon request.

K. Teacher Credentials, Highly Qualified Teacher Requirements, and Non-Certificated Personnel
Biannually in October and February, in accordance with Attachment C, Reporting Timeline, the Charter
School shall provide to LACOE an all Staff Information List (certificated and non-certificated personnel)
and documentation that all teachers hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or
other document equivalent to that which teachers in other public schools are required to hold, except as
otherwise exempted by The Charter Schools Act.

The Charter School shall adhere to all provisions of employment laws applicable to charter schools
including, but not limited to, EC § 47612.5(e)(1) which states: "Notwithstanding any other provision of
law, and as a condition of apportionment, "classroom-based instruction" in a charter school, for the
purposes of this part, occurs only when charter school pupils are engaged in educational activities
required of those pupils and are under the immediate supervision and control of an employee of the
school who possesses a valid teaching certification in accordance with subdivision (I) of Section
47605."

L. Specific Roles to be Identified:

e School Accountability Report Card (SARC) Coordinator - To ensure timely receipt of important
SARC information, it is the Charter School's responsibility to register and/or update the contact
information for a school employee who will assume the responsibilities of SARC Coordinator on
the California Department of Education’s (CDE) Accountability Report Card Listserv web page.
This is a user managed unrestricted listserv available to the public.

e Accountability (Testing) Coordinator - Coordinates and supervises implementation and
administration of federal testing programs, statewide testing programs, state field testing and
sample testing, and local group testing programs. It is the Charter School’'s responsibility to
name a school employee who will manage, coordinate, identify, organize and distribute
materials and ensure fidelity to the requirements of testing and ensure that all testing
information is properly reported.

e Custodian of Records - Person responsible for processing, reviewing and maintaining DOJ
clearance records. The individual must receive approval to fulfill this role from the DOJ.

e Homeless Liaison - Individual responsible to act as point of contact for families as required by
federal law: 42 USC § 11432 (g)(1)(J)(ii).

M. Business Services, Education Management, and Vendor Contracts: If within the term of the charter,
the Charter School contracts with a vendor to provide business services including but not limited to
payroll, accounting and budgeting, attendance accounting, fiscal reporting, contract management, or
purchasing, the Charter School must provide LACOE a copy of the agreement that specifies the exact
services to be provided and their cost, the term of the contract and the Charter School’s provisions for
monitoring the contract to ensure compliance with the contract and quality of service. The charter
school shall submit all contracts to LACOE no later than 30 days prior to opening and within 10
days of governing board approval whenever a new contract is entered into or revised.

N. Management Contracts: Prior to entering into a new or revised contract with an education or charter
management organization (EMO/CMO), the Charter School shall provide LACOE with the following:

e A draft of the proposed management contract.
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A recent corporate annual report and audited financial statements for the EMO/CMO.
A description of the EMO/CMQ's roles and responsibilities for the management of the Charter.
School and the internal controls that shall be put in place to guide the relationship.

A list of other charter schools managed by the EMO/CMO and the academic and operational
results of such management.

A list of and background on the EMO/CMO's leaders and board of directors.

A letter of assurance from the EMO/CMO that it has conflict of interest policies in place and that
none of the principals of either the EMO/CMO or the Charter School have conflicts of interests.

The County Board considers entering into a contract with an EMO/CMO not identified in the charter to
be a material revision to that charter. The County Board shall review and approve any charter school
management contracts prior to the Charter School entering into the contract. (See Section 4.1 Material
Revision to Charter)

O. Facilities: No later than 60 days prior to the opening of school or the occupying or re-occupying of a
facility or site, including learning centers, satellite facilities, administrative offices, and/or other facilities
used by the Charter School, the Charter School shall provide evidence that the facility is/will be
adequate for the Charter School's needs.

A pre-opening site visit will be conducted regardless of whether the Charter School is locating in
a facility provided by a district under EC § 47614 (Proposition 39), in a privately-leased facility,
or in a facility to be occupied under any other arrangement.

Prior to signing any lease or similar document, the Charter School will ensure compliance with
EC § 17215 regarding sites located near runways or potential runways.

The Charter School will provide a written signed Agreement (lease or other similar document)
indicating the Charter School’s right to use the principal school site and any ancillary facilities
identified by the Charter School for the first year of the School’s operation and upon any
change.

Prior to opening a site or before an existing school may occupy a new or different facility,
LACOE will conduct a site review to determine that the facilities are clean, safe, Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant, and have the necessary local approvals to operate. The
Charter School may not operate in the facility until the County Board has granted approval to do
so. Section 1.4 N of this Agreement describes the pre-opening site visit process and
requirements.

At all times it is operational, the Charter School shall maintain on file, post as required, and
furnish upon request, certification that its facility or facilities is/are located at a site or sites zoned
and/or permitted for operation of a charter school (grades operated by Charter School) and has
been cleared for use as a charter school by all appropriate local authorities (EC § 47610(d)).
The facility shall meet all applicable fire marshal clearances, certificates of occupancy, signed
building permit inspections, and approved zoning variances. The Charter School cannot exempt
itself from applicable/local zoning or building code ordinances.

If the Charter School seeks facilities from the district in which it intends fo locate, or is located,
under EC § 47614 (Proposition 39), it will follow applicable statute and regulations regarding
timely submission of such a request to the district. LACOE will conduct a pre-opening site
review to approve any facilities allocated to the school by the district.

LACOE will conduct an annual facilities inspection to ensure the facility is adequate for the
Charter School’s needs, is safe, and complies with all applicable codes, laws, and ordinances.
The school will be expected to make any required corrections identified by the facilities
inspection team within a timeframe that is commensurate with the violation, or concern.
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e Once open, a Charter School may change facilities only with prior approval of the County Board.

e Under ordinary circumstances, the Charter School shall provide LACOE not less than 60 days
notification of any change in facilities in order for LACOE to conduct a site visit prior to students
attending the new facilities. Under extraordinary circumstances, (e.g., a change of facilities
necessitated by fire or natural disaster), LACOE may waive the pre-opening site visit.

SECTION 2: EDUCATIONAL PERFORMANCE

2.1 Adherence to the Eight Areas of State Priority

The Charter School must recognize the importance of ensuring all students, including all student
subgroups, unduplicated students, and students with exceptional needs have attained the skills,
knowledge, and attitudes specified in the school’s educational program. To ensure success, a
description of annual goals to be achieved in the following eight State Priorities as they apply to the
grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the Charter School.

State Priority

Description

1 | Basic Services

The degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned (EC § 44258.9) and fully
credentialed, and every pupil has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional
materials (EC § 60119), and school facilities are maintained in good repair (EC §
17002(d)).

2 | Implementation of
Common Core State
Standards

Implementation of Common Core State Standards, including how EL students will be
enabled to gain academic content knowledge and English language proficiency

3 | Parental Parental involvement, including efforts to seek parent input for making decisions for
Involvement schools, and how the school will promote parent participation
4 | Student Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

Achievement

a. CA Measurement of Academic Progress and Performance statewide assessment

b. Percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy
UC/CSU entrancerequirements, or career technical education

c. Percentage of ELs who make progress toward English language proficiency as
measured by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT)
and/or English Language Proficiency Assessment for California (ELPAC)

d. EL reclassification rate

Percentage of pupils who have passed an AP exam with a score of 3 or higher

Percentage of pupils who participate in and demonstrate college preparedness

pursuant to the Early Assessment Program (EC § 99300 et seq.) or any

subsequent assessment of college preparedness

Tho

5 | Student
Engagement

Pupil engagement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
a. School attendance rates
b. Chronic absenteeism rates
c. Middle school dropout rates (EC § 52052.1(a)(3))
d. High school dropout rates
e. High school graduation rates

6 | School Climate

School climate, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
a. Pupil suspension rates
b. Pupil expulsion rates
¢. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the
sense of safety and school connectedness

7 | Course Access

The extent to which pupils have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of
study, including programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated
students (classified as EL, FRPM- eligible, or foster youth; EC § 42238.02) and
students with exceptional needs.

“Broad course of study” includes the following, as applicable:

Grades 1-6: English, mathematics, social sciences, science, visual and performing
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State Priority Description

arts, health, physical education, and other as prescribed by the governing board. (EC
§51210)

Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign language(s), physical education,
science, mathematics, visual and performing arts, applied arts, and career technical
education. (EC § 51220(a)-(i))

8 | Other Student From the subject areas described above in “Course Access” (or #7), as applicable.
Outcomes

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and annual update template shall be used to provide
details regarding the charter school's actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall
performance. The Charter School is expected to describe goals and specific actions to achieve those
goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in EC § 52052, including pupils with
disabilities for each of the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the
program operated by the Charter School. The Charter School may identify additional school priorities,
the goals for the school priorities and the specific annual actions to achieve those goals.

2.2 Academic Performance

Academic Standards are the benchmarks of quality and excellence in education. Benchmarks indicate
the interim steps a student will take to reach an annual goal or objective. The benchmarks serve as a
measurement gauge to monitor a student’s progress and to determine if the student is making sufficient
progress towards attaining those goals.

It will be the responsibility of the Charter School to submit to the LACOE, in a timely manner, the results
of the academic performance of the students, biannually. The results shall be provided for both English
Language Arts and Mathematics. Those results should provide the comparison of the students from
their baseline assessment to their mid-year and then to their end of year results.

e Mid-Year: mid-point of the fall semester or end of first trimester.
o End-of-year: mid-to-end of spring semester, end-of-second trimester or mid-third trimester.

This data must be submitted electronically in a format easily read by LACOE staff. In submitting
benchmark school specific data, the Charter School must address how the students are progressing
towards the measurable pupil outcomes written in the charter.

2.3 Educational Program

At all times it is operational the Charter School shall have available the information listed below. The
information shall be submitted to LACOE prior to opening, whenever updated, and upon request:

e Scope and sequence for all subjects to be offered by the Charter School during the school year
and during any supplemental instruction offering.

e The complete educational program for students to be served during the first year and each
subsequent year of operation including, but not limited to:

(1) A description of the curriculum and identification of the basic instructional materials to be
used.

(2) Plans for professional development for instructional personnel who will deliver the
curriculum and use the instructional materials, including agendas, topics to be covered,
and speakers.

(3) Results of interim/benchmark assessments used to evaluate student specific progress
during the school year in addition to the results of the Standardized Testing and Reporting
(STAR) program in evaluation of student progress.

(4) If a high school, the University of California course descriptions submitted to UC Doorway
(http://iwww.ucop.edu/doorwav/).
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(5) The Charter School's annual calendar for the school year that includes the number of
instructional days (minimum 175 days or as required by law), the annual instructional
minutes, minimum or early release days, holidays, board recess days, and professional
development days.

(6) Daily bell schedule for site-based programs that includes any passing time, breaks or
recess, lunch breaks, before and after school activities.

(7) Designation of any nonclassroom-based instructional days.

(8) Sample student contracts, description of frequency of contact with teachers, pupil/teacher
ratios, and description of how student work will be evaluated for time value for
nonclassroom-based programs (if applicable).

(9) Initial and mid-term (as appropriate) Western Association of Schools and Colleges
(WASC) accreditation self-study and visiting committee reports (if the school seeks such
accreditation).

(10) The Charter School's Single Plan/Single School District Plan (if applicable).
2.4 Student Achievement Plan®

The Charter School shall not be required to submit a Student Achievement Plan if it has met its LCAP
goals both school-wide and by significant subgroups, each year. If the Charter School fails to meet
goals school-wide or by numerically significant subgroups, it shall be required to submit a Student
Achievement Plan to LACOE according to the following dates:

e Qctober 1 - Draft Student Achievement Plan
e December 1 - Final Student Achievement Plan

If the Charter School is seeking renewal of a charter and has not met its LCAP goals in the prior year, it
shall submit a draft Student Achievement Plan for the future concurrent with the charter renewal
request.

The Charter School shall implement its final Student Achievement Plan that sets forth school specific
goals, how progress towards and achievement of each goal shall be measured, and plans for
addressing areas identified as needing improvement. The Student Achievement Plan shall build upon
the assessment measures, educational goals, and student outcomes described in the charter petition,
and shall provide for more stringent assessment measures, educational goals, and student outcomes
than those described in the charter petition. If the final Student Achievement Plan is less stringent than
the charter, this shall be considered a material revision to the charter and shall be subject to County
Board of Education review and approval. The specific requirements of the Student Achievement Plan
are described in Attachment A, Student Achievement Plan Guidelines.

2.5 Annual Report

Beginning with the second year of operation, by December 1 each year, the Charter School shall
submit a written “Annual Report/School Accountability Report Card” (SARC) to the County Board of
Education for the prior year that examines and describes the following:

e California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) results both in
aggregate and disaggregated by numerically significant subgroups.

e Progress made toward each of the educational goals and student outcomes identified in the
charter (Measureable Pupil Outcomes).

e FEvidence that the Charter School is systematically examining student data and using it to drive
decisions regarding curriculum and instruction.

* This requirement is subject to amendment in accordance with AB 97, EC § 47605.5 and the implementing Regulations.
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e Names and results of any additional internal assessments used by the Charter School not
identified in the charter.

e Plans to address areas identified as needing improvement by the Charter School.

e Evidence that the Charter School is financially sound based on certain criteria as indicated in
Attachment B, Fiscal Oversight Requirements and Financial Reporting.

e Other relevant information as determined by LACOE or the County Board.

LACOE shall provide the Charter School with a template for completing the Annual Report/SARC each
year. The Charter School shall also be provided with comparison schools.

If the Charter School has been required to submit a Student Achievement Plan, it shall address the
following elements in the Annual Report/SARC:

e Progress made in areas identified where progress falls short of meeting outcomes identified in
the Student Achievement Plan.

e Professional development provided to further progress on goals described in the Student
Achievement Plan.

e Progress made on the implementation of changes to curriculum and instructional strategies
identified in the Student Achievement Plan.

e |dentification of targeted funds to support elements of Student Achievement Plan.

e Specific evidence that the results, as shown in the Annual Report, are targeting improvement in
student achievement, and that the Charter School is financially sound according to the criteria
as set forth in Attachment B, Fiscal Oversight Requirements and Financial Reporting.

On or before July 1, 2015, and each year thereafter, the Annual Report shall conform to the
requirements of AB 97 as specified in EC § 47606.5, the implementing Regulations, County Board
Policy and Administrative Regulations. LACOE shall comply with EC § 47606.3 and the implementing
Regulations, County Board Policy and Administrative Regulations with respect to the monitoring,
oversight, technical assistance and revocation.

2.6 Oral Report to the Los Angeles County Board of Education

If requested by the County Board, the Charter School shall also participate in presenting an oral report
to the County Board each year. The presentation shall be after December 1 as calendared by the
County Board, typically between January and April. LACOE shall promptly inform the Charter School of
the date when it is calendared.

At the discretion of the County Board, the Charter School may be requested to present additional
updates and or reports during the year.

2.7 Services for Students with Disabilities

The Charter School shall submit documentation that it is a Local Education Agency (LEA) with a
Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) prior to commencing operations and provide a copy of its
SELPA Agreement to LACOE annually.

2.8 Annual Assessment of Students

The Charter School shall comply with all state and federal student assessment requirements. The
Charter School shall test independent of LACOE, comply with all requirements of the Educational
Testing Service (ETS), and provide LACOE with an electronic copy of all Student Level Data provided
by ETS within ten (10) days of receipt of the data from ETS.

2.9 Independent Study
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If the Charter School provides instruction through independent study, (whether it is the primary mode of
instruction or it is on an incidental basis), it will comply with all requirements of statute applicable to the
provision of independent study in charter schools, including EC, Part 28, Chapter 5, Article 5.5
(commencing with Section 51745), and applicable regulations.

The Charter School may, on a case-by-case basis, use short-term independent study contracts for
students who receive prior approval for absences due to travel or extended illness of three (3) or more
days of duration. Any such independent study will be limited to occasional, incidental instances of
extended absences, and must be fully compliant with all independent study statutes and regulations
applicable to charter schools.

The letter from the auditor certifying compliance must be submitted to LACOE prior to reporting
independent study ADA at the apportionment reporting periods.

A. Instructional Time Requirements: If the Charter School is approved as a site-based school, it must
provide a classroom-based instructional program such that at least 80 percent of the instructional time
offered by the Charter School is at the school site and the Charter School requires the attendance of all
students for at least 80 percent of the minimum instructional time offered. If the Charter School fails to
meet the instructional time requirements, it will be required to file a funding determination in accordance
with EC § 47634.2.

B. Calendar and Bell Schedules: No later than June 30, the Charter School will provide to LACOE-
Controller's Office the instructional calendar for the coming year showing all holidays, staff development
days, minimum days, and any other non-instructional days. In addition, the school will provide a daily
schedule of instruction including minimum days and other non-standard day schedules necessary to
compute annual instructional minutes.

The calendar and bell schedules will be reviewed to ensure compliance with minimum annual
instructional minutes by grade level per EC § 47612.5.

If the Charter School changes or updates its daily schedule, or instructional days, it must provide to
LACOE-Controller’s Office evidence of informing parents and guardians at least 30 days in advance of
the changes as well as the updated calendar or daily schedule.

SECTION 3: FISCAL OPERATIONS

3.1 Funding

The Charter School shall be funded in accordance with LCFF legislation, Chapter 47, Statues of 2013
(AB 97) and Chapter 49, Statutes of 2013 (SB 91) The Charter School’s entitlement shall be calculated
in accordance with LCFF Base Grant, Supplemental Grant and Concentration Grant The parties
recognize the authority of the Charter School to pursue additional sources of funding. The County
Board of Education must receive prior written notification of any source of additional funding that may
result in incurring additional debt (i.e., loans) to the Charter School. LACOE shall not be responsible for
resolving fiscal deficiencies for the Charter School.

3.2 Fiscal Agent

The Charter School shall contract with LACOE for the Charter School's participation in the State
Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) and/or the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) if
applicable. See section 3.7 for further discussion of the STRS/PERS responsibilities.

3.3 Student Attendance Accounting and Reporting

The Charter School shall use commercially available attendance accounting software that is compliant
with CALPADS data collection requirements. Prior to opening, annually, and upon revision, the Charter
School shall provide a copy of the Charter School's procedures for attendance accounting, with
evidence of internal controls. Spreadsheets on Excel or other programs shall not be accepted. The
Charter School shall submit a calendar of attendance months to LACOE no later than June 30,
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submitting it along with the school's bell schedules and instructional calendar. The structure of
attendance months shall adhere to EC § 37201.

The Charter School shall submit monthly enrollment and attendance data as required to receive
apportionment of funding within five (5) business days after the end of the attendance month to
LACOE.

In addition, the Charter School shall prepare and submit to LACOE/Controller's Office/Pupil Attendance
Accounting and Compliance Unit, the certified data file and original signature reports using the State
Principal Apportionment Data Collection Software reports according to the following schedule:

e Charter School Physical Location Report by April 10 or if it falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the
first business day following April 10.

e Charter School Adjustments to CALPADS Data (as applicable) by April 10 or if it falls on a
Saturday or Sunday, the first business day following April 10.

e First Principal Apportionment (P-1) (attendance for all full attendance months between July 1
and December 31) by January 4 or if it falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the first business day
following January 4.

e Second Principal Apportionment (P-2) (attendance for all full attendance months between July 1
and April 15) by April 20 or if it falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the first business day following
April 20.

e Annual Apportionment (attendance for the Charter School year) by July 6 or if it falls on a
Saturday or Sunday, the first business day following July 5.

e Corrections to the second principal apportionment and annual principal apportionment reports
shall be received by LACOE not later than September 15 or if it falls on a Saturday or Sunday,
the first business day following September 15.

NOTE: It is critical that the above attendance reporting deadlines are met in an accurate and timely
manner. If the School misses a reporting deadline or submits incomplete reports, it risks being excluded
from that apportionment’s certification and funding period. For example, if P-1 attendance data is not
received in time for inclusion in the P-1 certification, the school ADA defaults to zero and no funds are
paid for the P-1 funding period, February through May.

The Charter School shall submit with the Monthly Attendance Report, an Exit Report for each student
who leaves the school (except when matriculating to sixth grade). The Exit Report shall be completed
by the parent/guardian and minimally include: (1) reason for withdrawal; (2) date of withdrawal; (3)
school to which student is transferring; (4) parent/guardian signature and date; and (5) administrative
signature and date. The Exit Reports shall coincide with the inclusive dates of the Monthly Attendance
Report.

Summer Instruction: If the school is providing summer instruction, a calendar of the summer program
shall be provided to LACOE no less than two (2) weeks prior to the start of the instruction.

3.4 Revenue and Expenditure Reporting

The Charter School is required by EC § 47604.33 to submit periodic reports of revenues, expenditures,
and reserves. The Charter School shall submit to LACOE monthly statement of cash flows, copies of
bank statements, General Ledger, Revenue and Expenditure Summary, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Fund Balance, Year-to-date Budget to Actual Statement and notes to financial
statements in accordance with Attachment B, Fiscal Oversight Requirements and Financial Reporting.
As part of the continuous oversight, LACOE shall make a periodic assessment of the charter's fiscal
condition.
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In order to meet statutory timelines for revenue and expenditure reporting, The Charter School shall
submit reports to LACOE for review using the state software (SACS20 ALL), according to the following
schedule:

e Preliminary budget on or before July 1

e First Interim Report (expenditures through 10/31) on or before December 15
e Second Interim Report (expenditures through 1/31) on or before March 15

e Unaudited Actuals Report for the prior fiscal year on or before September 15

Any changes in the budget or interim reports from one reporting period to the next period shall be
explained in writing. Explanations and budget assumptions shall accompany the reports. The Charter
School is expected to maintain reserves of no less than three (3) percent of the Charter School’'s
Adopted Budget for the fiscal year. An explanation of any projected drop in reserves below the three (3)
percent level shall be included in the assumptions.

3.5 Annual Audit

In accordance EC § 41020(b)(3) by March 13 of each year, the Charter School shall submit to LACOE
information regarding the audit firm that will be conducting the annual audit. Information shall include
the following:

e Cover letter includes: Audit firm name, address, partner(s), and audit firm contract number; e-
mail address, contract period, contract amount, and date of Board approval

e Copy of Board minutes approving audit firm
e Copy of the fully executed contract with the audit firm

In accordance with EC § 41020, by December 15 of each year, the Charter School shall submit an
annual independent financial audit to the State Controller’s Office (SCO), LACOE, and the CDE. The
audit shall be conducted by an auditor from the list approved by the SCO and mutually agreeable to
LACOE and the Charter School. If any findings or exceptions are identified in the annual audit, the
Charter School shall implement corrective action plans in a timely manner. Continuing or unresolved
prior year findings or deficiencies shall have negative impact on the Charter School’s renewal
request.

The SCO does not grant filing extensions to charter schools. The extension must be obtained through
the chartering entity. Submit extension requests to the LACOE Business Advisory Services Division,
and LACOE will notify the SCO and the CDE of the approved extensions.

In addition to the Charter School’s financial statements, the audit shall include, as applicable, but not be
limited to:

e« Contemporaneous records of attendance

e Annual instructional minutes

¢ Documentation related to non-classroom-based instruction

e Determination of funding for nonclassroom-based instruction as per EC § 47634.2
3.6 Oversight Fees

The Charter School shall be charged an oversight fee not to exceed one (1) percent of the LCFF Base
Grant, Supplemental Grant and Concentration Grant received by the Charter School in accordance with
EC § 47613 and used to offset consultant and administrative costs required for comprehensive
oversight, which includes but is not limited to the following categories:

e Curriculum and instruction
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e Assessment and accountability

e School fiscal review

¢ Site visitations

¢ Renewal evaluations

e Attendance accounting processing, analysis and certification

e In the case of a countywide charter (EC § 47605.6), the County Board may enter into an
agreement with a third party, at the expense of the Charter School, to oversee, monitor, and
report to the County Board on the Charter School’'s operations. The County Board may
prescribe the aspects of the Charter School's operations to be monitored by the third party and
may prescribe appropriate requirements regarding the reporting of information concerning the
operations of the Charter School to the county board of education. (EC § 47605.6(a)(1)) The
County Board delegates the authority to make this determination and enter into the agreement
to the County Superintendent of Schools/designee.

The oversight fee shall be based on the LCFF Base Grant, Supplemental Grant and Concentration
Grant funding provided to the Charter School at the Second Principal Apportionment (P-2).

3.7 State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)/Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)
Reporting

If the Charter School offers its employees the opportunity to participate in STRS or PERS, the Charter
School shall be responsible for contracting with LACOE for reporting purposes. Such arrangements
shall be made prior to the hiring of any employee. The Charter School shall notify LACOE of the staff
person who will make the arrangements and provide written notification that arrangements have been
made prior to the hiring of employees. If the school participates in any alternative retirement systems,
information regarding those systems must also be provided.

SECTION 4: FULFILLING CHARTER TERMS

4.1 Material Revision to Charter

Changes to the charter deemed to be material revisions may not be made without prior approval by the
County Board of Education. Revisions to the charter considered to be material changes include, but are
not limited to, the following:

e Substantial changes to the educational program (including the addition or deletion of an
educational program), mission, or vision.

e Changing to or adding a nonclassroom-based program.

e Proposed changes in enroliment that increases or decreases by more than 20 percent +/- of the
enroliment originally projected in the charter petition in any given year or a change that could
significantly impact the academic or financial sustainability of the School.

e Addition or deletion of grades or grade levels to be served.

e Changes to location of facilities or lease agreements for the Charter School sites, resource
centers, meeting space, or other satellite facility including the opening of a new facility;
temporary locations rented for annual student testing purposes shall be exempted from this
provision.

e Changing admissions requirements and procedures.

o Governance structure, including but not limited to: changes in number of board members,
method by which new board members are selected, and/or changes in majority/quorum or other
provisions relating to resolution approval.
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Entering into or revising a contract with an EMO/CMO.

4.2 State Assessments

The Charter School agrees to comply with and adhere to the state requirements for participation and
administration of all state mandated tests, including the designation of a test site coordinator and the
establishment of accounts with each test vendor. The state tests required to be administered include,
but may not be limited to:

Smarter Balanced Assessments

California Standards Tests (select tests/grades)
California High School Exit Examination
Physical Fitness Test

California English Language Development Test
California Alternate Performance Assessment

Aprenda

4.3 Site Visits

LACOE shall conduct at least two (2) visits during the school year. The site visits shall consist of the
following:

At least one (1) site visit shall be conducted in order to assess the Charter School’s progress in
governance and organizational management, educational performance, fiscal operations, and
fulfillment of the terms of the charter. The primary focus of the visit shall be on teaching and
learning and, if applicable, the Student Achievement Plan (described under Section 2:
Educational Performance). The site visit may include review of the facility, review of records
maintained by the Charter School, interviews with administrators, staff, students, and parents,
and observation of instruction in the classroom. The evaluations for each year shall constitute
one (1) basis upon which a renewal decision shall be made at the end of the term of the charter
in accordance with the Education Code. Any deficiencies shall be reviewed with the Charter
School administration. The Charter School administration will be given an opportunity to
address the deficiencies.

At least one (1) site visit shall be conducted to review the charter school facilities. LACOE will
conduct an annual facilities inspection to ensure the facility is adequate for the Charter School’s
needs, is safe, and complies with all applicable codes, laws, and ordinances. The school will be
expected to make any required corrections identified by the facilities inspection team within a
timeframe that is commensurate with the violation, or concern.

EC § 47604.32(b) requires LACOE to conduct a site visit at least annually. The purpose of the visits
shall be to monitor the instructional program and operations in accordance with County Board of
Education Policy 0420.4. The County Board and LACOE staff may inspect or observe any part of
the charter school at any time. (EC § 47607(a)(1)).

4.4 Renewals

The Charter School may seek renewal of its charter prior to expiration of the term of the charter in
accordance with EC § 47605(k)(3), EC § 47607(a) and (b), the implementing Regulations, County
Board Policy and Administrative Regulations.

In the case of a countywide charter, the elements of the renewal petition shall comply with EC §
47605.6. The Charter School shall submit its renewal petition for the next charter term along with a
copy of the most recent Annual Report and Student Achievement Plan (if applicable) to LACOE. The
renewal petition may be submitted no earlier than the date CDE releases the schools’ academic
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performance data for the school year prior to the last year of the term of the charter and no later than
January 31 of the last year of the term of the charter except as provided for under LACOE Board Policy.

LACOE shall review the charter petition, consider the Charter School's academic, financial, and
operational performance (including its audit reports and annual visitation reports), and conduct a
renewal site visit as part of the renewal process. To the extent required, the charter petition shall be
revised in accordance with current statutes and regulations. LACOE shall abide by Education Code,
California Code of Regulations (CCR), and County Board Policy and Regulation when considering
charter renewal.

4.5 Notice of Violation, Opportunity to Remedy, and Revocation

The County Board may provide notice of violation, opportunity to remedy, and revoke the charter as set
forth in EC § 47607, its implementing Regulations, County Board Policy, and Administrative
Regulations.

4.6 Closure Procedures

At all times it is operational, the Charter School shall have closure procedures in place and available for
review. Closure procedures shall be submitted to LACOE prior to opening, whenever updated, and
upon request. Procedures shall be compliant with EC § 47604.32, 47605, 47605.6 and 47607; with Title
5, CCR § 11962 and 11962.1; as well as with County Board Policies and Procedures, and shall contain
at a minimum, the following:

o Identification of a responsible person(s) (e.g., Executive Director, Financial Officer, President of
the Charter School governing board) to oversee and conduct the closure process; this provision
shall include a process to ensure that closure procedures are updated no less than annually or
when any change is made.

o Notification of students and families of the Charter School closure.
e Security of student and business records.

e System for exiting all students correctly in CALPADS. The exit date must be on or before the
official closure date.

e Processing of final employee payroll and benefits, including contributions to STRS/PERS, as
applicable.

¢ Identification of all assets and liabilities and the plan for transfer as detailed in the charter.
o Final close-out audit to be paid for by the Charter School.
¢ |dentification of a source of funding to be used for closeout expenses including the final audit.
e Dissolution of the Charter School and/or nonprofit corporation.
Further descriptions of each of these items can be found in the laws and regulations listed above in 4.6.

If the Charter School is to close permanently for any reason (i.e., voluntary surrender, non-renewal, or
revocation), LACOE shall serve written notice on the Charter School that closure procedures have been
invoked. No later than 10 days after receiving that notice, the Charter School will meet with LACOE to
plan for the orderly closing of the Charter School. Individuals present at that meeting shall include the
individual the Charter School identified as responsible for closure, a member of the Charter School’s
governing board and LACOE staff that will work with the Charter School to complete all close out
activities.

The Charter School expressly acknowledges the right of LACOE, on behalf of the County
Superintendent of Schools to take immediate and direct control of all of the Charter School’s student
and business records at any time after LACOE gives written notice that it is invoking closure
procedures.
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SECTION 5: REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

The preliminary or final written results of any investigation of the Charter School will be provided as
soon as possible, (within 48 hours of receipt), to the LACOE Charter School Office for its review. This
includes, but is not limited to, any Notices of Violation or Orders to Comply from any federal, state of
local agency. LACOE will determine whether the violation constitutes grounds for revocation under
Education Code 47607(c)(1).

SECTION 6: NONDISCRIMINATION

The parties recognize and agree that the Charter School shall not charge tuition, shall be nonsectarian,
and pursuant to EC § 200, the School shall be open to all students regardless of race, ethnicity,
national origin, gender, sexual orientation (whether perceived or actual), religion, socioeconomic status,
or disability, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in §
422.55 of the Penal Code. These non-discrimination provisions shall apply to employment of all staff
members as well.

SECTION 7: SEVERABILITY

If any provision or any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid and/or unenforceable
or contrary to public policy, or statute, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby
and shall remain valid and fully enforceable.

SECTION 8: NON-ASSIGNMENT

No portion of this Agreement or the charter petition approved by the LACOE may be assigned to
another entity without the prior written approval of the County Board of Education.

SECTION 9: WAIVER

A waiver of any provision or term of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. Any
such waiver shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement. All parties agree that
neither party to this Agreement waives any of the rights, responsibilities, and privileges established by
the Charter Schools Act of 1992.

SECTION 10: NOTIFICATION

All notices, requests, and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and mailed to
the proper addresses as follows:

To LACOE:
Controller’'s Office or Charter School Office
C/O Patricia Smith, Executive Director C/O Dina Wilson, Director Il
Los Angeles County Office of Education Los Angeles County Office of Education
9300 Imperial Highway 9300 Imperial Highway
Downey, CA 90242 Downey, CA 90242

To the Charter School:
Name: Title:
Name of Charter School
Address 1
Address 2

City, State Zip Code
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To the Charter School governing board:

Name: Title:
Name of Charter School

Address 1

Address 2

City, State Zip Code

This Agreement, including Attachments A through D, contains the entire agreement of the parties with
respect to the matters covered hereby, and supersedes any oral or written understandings, agreement
or agreements between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. No person or
party is authorized to make any representations or warranties except as set forth herein, and no
agreement, statement, representation or promise by any party hereto which is not contained herein
shall be valid or binding. The undersigned acknowledges that she/he has not relied upon any
warranties, representations, statements, or promises by any of the parties herein or any of their agents
or consultants except as may be expressly set forth in this Agreement. The parties further recognize
that this Agreement shall only be modified in writing by the mutual agreement of the parties.

Date Print Sign
Authorized Board Representative, Name of Charter School

Date Print Sign
Authorized Board Representative, Name of Charter School

Date Patricia Smith, Executive Director
Business and Finance
Los Angeles County Office of Education
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Attachment A: Student Achievement Plan Guidelines
I. Overview

A Student Achievement Plan is required to be submitted to the Los Angeles County Office of Education
(LACOE) if the Charter School fails to meet all of its Measureable Pupil Outcomes (MPOs) and/or
LCAP goals in any year. The Achievement Plan requires the Charter School to establish specific goals
and actions the Charter School will take to improve student academic achievement in those areas
identified through the MPOs and/or LCAP update as not meeting performance criteria. The Charter
School shall be expected to present an annual update to the County Board of Education on the
progress made in meeting goals identified in the Student Achievement Plan. These guidelines make
explicit the elements that shall be addressed in the Student Achievement Plan for any subject area or
criteria in which the Charter School falls short of targets. Data compiled from this Student Achievement
Plan and the annual update, plus confirming evidence gathered during periodic site visits will provide
LACOE with evidence of whether the Charter School is on track to its charter being renewed.

In addition to the MPOs and LCAP goals, the Charter School may incorporate a variety of additional
outcome measures to further demonstrate academic achievement and organizational effectiveness.
While these various supplemental measures will not carry as much weight as the required measures in
making renewal decisions, they may be important in helping the Charter School achieve its academic
goals and distinctive qualities in the Charter School's mission as well as highlight those goals.

Il. Required Components of the Student Achievement Plan

For each area in which the Charter School did not meet its MPOs or LCAP goals, the Charter School
shall submit a plan to the LACOE describing specific and concrete actions the Charter School will take
in order to improve student achievement over the course of the current school year. The Student
Achievement Plan shall address, at a minimum, the following elements:

« Methods or system the Charter School uses to examine student achievement data on a regular
basis across grade levels, by subject matter, by significant subgroups, and across the Charter
School as a whole.

= Analysis of the CAASPP results that identifies the specific problem in the area(s) not meeting
targets and/or criteria.

« Specific actions, which follow from the examination of student data, which the Charter School
will take to improve student achievement in the area(s) identified as needing improvement,
including changes to curriculum, instruction, assessment, governance, and organization.

- Professional development plan for teachers and/or other staff that supports the activities the
Charter School will implement to improve performance in targeted areas.

« Diagnostic assessments that will be used to enable the Charter School to monitor the effects of
proposed changes on student performance.

The Charter School shall submit a draft Student Achievement Plan to LACOE by October 1 if the
Charter School did not meet its MPOs or LCAP goals in the prior year. LACOE will review the draft
plan and either approve it as submitted or request changes to it. If changes are required, the final Plan
shall be due to LACOE by December 1.

Further information regarding APl may be found at www.cde.ca.qovitalaciap/index.asp on the LACOE
website.  Information on  AYP, including targets and criteria may be found
at www.cde.ca.qoviteac/ayfindex.asp.

In accordance with AB 97, prior to July 1, 2015, these guidelines may be amended to reflect EC §
47605.5 and the implementing Regulations.
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Attachment B: Fiscal Oversight Requirements and Financial Reporting

LACOE shall determine fiscal soundness of the Charter School by reviewing and analyzing the financial
reports and documents provided by the Charter School. This determination shall be made each month
and LACOE shall notify the Charter School in writing of any concerns it may have regarding the
financial stability of the Charter School.

If the Charter School is in its first year of operation and will begin instruction by September 30, or if the
Charter School is significantly expanding, the school may receive a special advance and/or allocation
on their funding for certain state and federal categorical programs. The special advance and/or
allocation are based on estimates of the school's upcoming enrollment, average daily attendance
and/or pupil demographic data. These data estimates are submitted in the Pupil Estimates for New or
Significantly Expanding Charters (PENSEC) report. This report should be submitted online on the CDE
website with the original report submitted to LACOE, no later than the last day of July of that same
year.

LACOE requires that the charter school shall make available for the authorizer’s review any revisions in
revenue and expenditures that it has made to its budget, not later than 45 days after the Governor
signs the annual Budget Act, to reflect the funding made available by that Budget Act. This is pursuant
to Ed. Code § 42127(i)(4).

In addition to the above, by the fifteen of each month the Charter School shall provide the following
reports and documents with full disclosure of transactions to the Business Advisory Services Division
for the prior month:

1. Monthly bank statements

Monthly bank reconciliations

Monthly general ledger

Statement of revenue and expenditures
Statement of financial position

o oA W N

Year to date budget to actual statement
7. Notes to financial statements

Beginning with the 2012—-13 school-year, the Charter School will receive general purpose state aid
funding pursuant to Proposition 30, known as the Education Protection Account (EPA). To be
complaint with the requirements of Proposition 30, the school must:

1. The Charter School's governing board must meet to make spending determinations for the
funds at an open public meeting.

2. Report the amount of funds received and how the funds will be/were spent.

LACOE may require additional financial related documents and shall request them of the Charter
School as needed.
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Attachment C: Reporting Timeline (Revised Annually)

Los Angeles County Office of Education
Timeline and Due Dates

Page 27 of 29
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Attachment D

Action of the County Board to Authorize the Charter School
(Provided as a separate file)
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(Include with MOU)

Request for Taxpavyer Identification Number and Certification

(Provided as a separate file)
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Coversheet

(Ratify) Updated Magnolia Public Schools Bylaws

Section:

Item:
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Submitted by:
Related Material:

[I. Action ltem
C. (Ratify) Updated Magnolia Public Schools Bylaws
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&

MAGNOLIA MAGNOLIA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH

o Board Of Directors
Board Agenda Item # I1C
Date: 11.03.2016
To: Magnolia Board of Directors
From: Caprice Young, Ed.D., CEO & Superintendent
Staff Lead: David Yilmaz, Chief Accountability Officer
RE: Approval of Updated Magnolia Public Schools Bylaws

Proposed Board Recommendation

I move that the board approve the Updated Magnolia Public Schools Bylaws.

Background

As per the settlement agreement with LAUSD and to provide stability in our governance
structure, Magnolia Board provides for staggered terms which is accomplished by appointing
members of the Board at different times and for staggered terms. We are updating our Corporate
Bylaws to reflect this structure.

Budget Implications

None at this time.

Name of Staff Originator:

David Yilmaz
Chief Accountability Officer

Attachments

Updated Bylaws (clean and redline copies)
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF
MAGNOLIA EDUCATIONAL & RESEARCH FOUNDATION

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

ARTICLEI
NAME

Section 1. NAME. The name of this corporation is Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation.

ARTICLE II
PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION

Section 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE CORPORATION. The principal office for the transaction of the
activities and affairs of this corporation is 250 East 15t Street, Suite 1500, Los Angeles, 9oo12 California. The Board of
Directors may change the location of the principal office. Any such change of location must be noted by the Secretary on

these bylaws opposite this Section; alternatively, this Section may be amended to state the new location.

Section 2. OTHER OFFICES OF THE CORPORATION. The Board of Directors may at any time

establish branch or subordinate offices at any place or places where this corporation is qualified to conduct its activities.

ARTICLE III
GENERAL AND SPECIFIC PURPOSES; LIMITATIONS

Section 1. GENERAL AND SPECIFIC PURPOSES. The purposes of this corporation are to provide
community support in educational and research areas, which include, but are not limited to the following: managing,
operating, guiding, directing and promoting public charter schools; conducting scientific research at K-12 schools and
colleges to identify and implement successful education practices; promoting and discovering the research modules in
scientific areas with applied and practicable methods to promote prospective scientists; coordinating international
conferences/competitions in various fields of academic study. Also in the context of these purposes, the Corporation shall
not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any other activities or exercise of power that do not further the purposes

of the Corporation.

The Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by: (a) a corporation
exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any
future federal tax code; or (b) a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal
Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code. No substantial part of the activities of the
Corporation shall consist of the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the
Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distributing of statements) any political

campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Page 1 0f 14
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ARTICLE IV
CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS

Section 1. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS. Unless the context indicates otherwise, the general
provisions, rules of construction and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law shall govern the construction
of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, the masculine gender includes the feminine
and neuter, the singular includes the plural, and the plural includes the singular, and the term “person” includes both a

legal entity and a natural person.

ARTICLE V
DEDICATION OF ASSETS

Section 1. DEDICATION OF ASSETS. This corporation’s assets are irrevocably dedicated to public
benefit purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of the corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall
inure to the benefit of any private person or individual, or to any director or officer of the corporation. On liquidation or
dissolution, all properties and assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts, liabilities and all
charter obligations of the corporation shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation that is organized
and operated exclusively for the public and/or charitable purposes of managing, operating, guiding, directing, promoting,
and/or supporting one or more California public charter schools that serve students in grades K-12 and that has

established its exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3).

ARTICLE VI
CORPORATIONS WITHOUT MEMBERS

Section 1. CORPORATIONS WITHOUT MEMBERS. This corporation shall have no voting members
within the meaning of the Nonprofit Corporation Law.

ARTICLE VII
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. GENERAL POWERS. Subject to the provisions and limitations of the California Nonprofit
Public Benefit Corporation Law and any other applicable laws, and subject to any limitations of the articles of
incorporation or bylaws, the corporation’s activities and affairs shall be managed, and all corporate powers shall be
exercised, by or under the direction of the Board of Directors (“Board”). The Board may delegate the management of the
corporation’s activities to any person(s), management company or committees, however composed, provided that the
activities and affairs of the corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised under the ultimate

direction of the Board.

Section 2. SPECIFIC POWERS. Without prejudice to the general powers set forth in Section 1 of these

bylaws, but subject to the same limitations, the Board of Directors shall have the power to:

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation Page 2 of 14
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a. Appoint and remove, at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, all corporate officers, agents, and
employees; prescribe powers and duties for them as are consistent with the law, the articles of
incorporation, and these bylaws; fix their compensation; and require from them security for faithful

service.

b. Change the principal office or the principal business office in California from one location to another;
cause the corporation to be qualified to conduct its activities in any other state, territory, dependency,
or country; conduct its activities in or outside California; and designate a place in California for holding

any meeting of members.

c. Borrow money and incur indebtedness on the corporation’s behalf and cause to be executed and
delivered for the corporation’s purposes, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures,

deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, and other evidences of debt and securities.

d. Adopt and use a corporate seal; prescribe the forms of membership certificates; and alter the forms of
the seal and certificates.

Section 3. DESIGNATED DIRECTORS. The number of directors shall be no less than fthree (3) and no

more than eleven (11), unless changed by amendments to these bylaws. The exact number of directors shall be fixed

within these limits by a Resolution of the Board. All directors shall be designated by the existing Board of Directors. ,

The Board of Directors commits to designating at least one (1) director who resides in each county where this
corporation operates a charter school. The Board of Directors shall strive to recruit directors representing parents and the
charter school communities, from diverse professional and ethnic backgrounds and commits to designating at least one (1)
director representing parents at all times.

Section 4. RESTRICTION ON EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS. No current employees of the Corporation
may serve on the Board of Directors.

Section 5. DIRECTORS’ TERMS. Each director shall hold office for five (5) years and until a successor
director has been designated and qualified. The terms of directors shall be staggered as determined by the Board.

Staggering has been accomplished by the Board appointing directors on different dates. The staggered terms of the current

Board are as follows:

First Name Last Name Beginning Term End term

i Ms. Noel Russell-Unterburger 10/11/12 10/10/17 (former parent)
2, Dr. Umit Yapanel 10/11/12 10/10/17

3 Mr. Nguyen Huynh 3/12/15 10/10/17

4y Mr. Saken  Sherkhanov 12/12/13 12/11/18 (former teacher)
5 Dr. Salih Dikbas 4/21/16 12/10/19

A

6, Mrs. Diane  Gonzalez 12/11/14 12/10/19

% Dr. Remzi Oten 3/12/15 03/11/20 (current parent)
A

8 Dr. Ali Korkmaz 9/10/15 9/9/20
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9 Mr. Serdar Orazov 9/10/15 9/9/20

Staggering shall be maintained as directors shall be appointed to fill vacant seats at the expiration of each staggered term.

Section 6. NOMINATIONS BY COMMITTEE. The Chairman of the Board of Directors or, if none, the
President will appoint a committee to pominate qualified candidates for designation to the Board of Directors at least

thirty (30) days before the date of any designation of directors. The nominating committee shall make its report at least

seven (7) days before the date of the designation or at such other time as the Board of Directors may set and the Secretary

shall forward to each Board member, with the notice of meeting required by these bylaws, a list of all candidates

nominated by committee, Any member of the community may also refer a potential candidate to the Board for

consideration.

Section 7. USE OF CORPORATE FUNDS TO SUPPORT NOMINEE. If more people have been

nominated for director than can be designated, no corporation funds may be expended to support a nominee.

Section 8. EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD. A vacancy or vacancies on the Board of
Directors shall occur in the event of (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (b) the declaration by resolution
of the Board of Directors of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been convicted of a felony, declared of unsound
mind by a court order, or found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under California
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law, Chapter 2, Article 3; (c) the increase of the authorized number of directors; and
(d) the failure of the members, at any meeting of members at which any director or directors are to be elected, to elect the

number of directors required to be elected at such meeting.

Section 9. RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS. Except as provided below, any director may resign by
giving written notice to the Chairman of the Board, if any, or to the President, or the Secretary, or to the Board. The
resignation shall be effective when the notice is given unless the notice specifies a later time for the resignation to become
effective. If a director’s resignation is effective at a later time, the Board of Directors may elect a successor to take office as

of the date when the resignation becomes effective.

Section 10. DIRECTOR MAY NOT RESIGN IF NO DIRECTOR REMAINS. Except on notice to the
California Attorney General, no director may resign if the corporation would be left without a duly elected director or
directors.

Section 11. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS. Any director may be removed, with or without cause, by a

simple majority of directors then in office at a special meeting called for that purpose, or at a regular meeting, provided
that notice of that meeting and of the removal questions are given in compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M.
Brown Act. (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code). Any

vacancy caused by the removal of a director shall be filled as provided in Section 12.

Section 12. VACANCIES FILLED BY BOARD. Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled by

approval of the Board of Directors or, if the number of directors then in office is less than a quorum, by (a) the unanimous
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consent of the directors then in office, (b) the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office at a meeting held

according to notice or waivers of notice complying with Corporations Code Section 5211, or (c) a sole remaining director.

Section 13. NO VACANCY ON REDUCTION OF NUMBER OF DIRECTORS. Any reduction of the

authorized number of directors shall not result in any directors being removed before his or her term of office expires.

Section 14. QUORUM. A majority of the directors then in office shall constitute a quorum. If a
quorum is present, the affirmative vote of the majority of the directors at the meeting shall be a decision of the Board
of Directors. Should there be fewer than a majority of the directors present at any meeting, the meeting shall be
adjourned. A majority of the directors present, whether or not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to
another time and place. Directors may not vote by proxy. The vote or abstention of each board member present for

each action taken shall be publicly reported.

Section 15. COMPENSATION AND REIMBURSEMENT. Directors shall serve without compensation
except that they shall be allowed reasonable advancement or reimbursement of actual reasonable expenses incurred in

carrying out his or her duties. Directors shall not otherwise be compensated.

Section 16. CREATION AND POWERS OF COMMITTEES. The Board, by resolution adopted by a
majority of the directors then in office, may create one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors and
no one who is not a director, to serve at the pleasure of the Board. Appointments to committees of the Board of Directors
shall be by majority vote of the authorized number of directors. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more directors
as alternate members of any such committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting. Any such committee
shall have all the authority of the Board, to the extent provided in the Board of Directors’ resolution, except that no

committee may:

a. Take any final action on any matter that, under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
Law, also requires approval of the members or approval of a majority of all members;

b. Fill vacancies on the Board of Directors or any committee of the Board;

c. Amend or repeal bylaws or adopt new bylaws;

d. Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by its express terms is not so amendable
or subject to repeal;

e. Create any other committees of the Board of Directors or appoint the members of committees of the
Board;

f. Expend corporate funds to support a nominee for director if more people have been nominated for
director than can be elected; or

g. Approve any contract or transaction to which the corporation is a party and in which one or more of its
directors has a material financial interest.

Section 17. MEETINGS AND ACTION OF COMMITTEES. Meetings and actions of committees of the

Board of Directors shall be governed by, held, and taken under the provisions of these bylaws concerning meetings, other
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Board of Directors’ actions, and the Brown Act, except that the time for general meetings of such committees and the
calling of special meetings of such committees may be set either by Board of Directors’ resolution or, if none, by resolution
of the committee. Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records. The Board of
Directors may adopt rules for the governance of any committee as long as the rules are consistent with these bylaws. If the

Board of Directors has not adopted rules, the committee may do so.

Section 18. NON-LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS. No director shall be personally liable for the debts,

liabilities, or other obligations of this corporation.

Section 19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS GOVERNING STUDENT RECORDS. The Charter School
and the Board of Directors shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Family Education Rights Privacy Act
(“FERPA”) as set forth in Title 20 of the United States Code Section 1232g and attendant regulations as they may be

amended from time to time.

Section 20. COMPLIANCE WITH CONFLICTS OF INTEREST LAWS. The Corporation shall comply with
applicable conflict of interest laws, including the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Chapter 1 (commencing with Section
81000) of Title 9 of the Government Code) and Govt. Code § 1090 et seq.

ARTICLES VIII
MEETINGS

Section 1. PLACE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS. The Board of Directors may designate that
a meeting be held at any place within California that has been designated by resolution of the Board of Directors or in the
notice of the meeting and which is in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. The Board of Directors commits to
rotating the locations of its regular physical meetings among the counties where the corporation’s charter school sites are
located, and to holding at least one of its regular physical meetings in a calendar year in each of those counties, and that

the final date, time, and place will be specified in the notice of the meeting in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act.

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called, held and conducted in accordance with the terms and
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Sections 54950, et seq., as said chapter may be

modified by subsequent legislation.

Section 2. MEETINGS; ANNUAL MEETINGS. All meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committees shall be called, noticed, and held in compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. (“Brown

Act”) (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code).

The Board of Directors shall meet annually for the purpose of organization, appointment of officers, and the
transaction of such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting. This meeting shall be held at a

time, date, and place as may be specified and noticed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held on the
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second Thursday of each month, unless the second Thursday of the month should fall on a legal holiday in which
event the regular meeting shall be held at the same hour and place on the next business day following the legal
holiday. At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, the Board of Directors, or its designee, shall post an agenda

containing a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.

Section 4. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any purpose may be
called at any time by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, if there is such an officer or a majority of the Board of
Directors. If a Chairman of the Board has not been elected, then the President is authorized to call a special meeting
in place of the Chairman of the Board. The party calling a special meeting shall determine the place, date, and time
thereof.

Section 5. NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETINGS. In accordance with the Brown Act, special meetings of
the Board of Directors may be held only after twenty-four (24) hours’ notice is given to each director and to the public
through the posting of an agenda. Pursuant to the Brown Act, the Board of Directors shall adhere to the following

notice requirements for special meetings:

a. Any such notice shall be addressed or delivered to each director at the director’s address as it is
shown on the records of the Corporation, or as may have been given to the Corporation by the
director for purposes of notice, or, if an address is not shown on the Corporation’s records or is not

readily ascertainable, at the place at which the meetings of the Board of Directors are regularly held.

b. Notice by mail shall be deemed received at the time a properly addressed written notice is deposited
in the United States mail, postage prepaid. Any other written notice shall be deemed received at the
time it is personally delivered to the recipient or is delivered to a common carrier for transmission,
or is actually transmitted by the person giving the notice by electronic means to the recipient. Oral
notice shall be deemed received at the time it is communicated, in person or by telephone or
wireless, to the recipient or to a person at the office of the recipient whom the person giving the

notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the receiver.

c. The notice of special meeting shall state the time of the meeting, and the place if the place is other
than the principal office of the Corporation, and the general nature of the business proposed to be
transacted at the meeting. No business, other than the business the general nature of which was set

forth in the notice of the meeting, may be transacted at a special meeting.

Section 6. TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in

teleconference meetings so long as all of the following requirements in the Brown Act are complied with:

a. At a minimum, a quorum of the members of the Board of Directors shall participate in the
teleconference meeting from locations within the boundaries of a school district in which at least

one of the charter schools operated by the corporation operates;
b. All votes taken during a teleconference meeting shall be by roll call;

c. If the Board of Directors elects to use teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference

locations with each teleconference location being identified in the notice and agenda of the
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meeting;

d. All locations where a member of the Board of Directors participates in a meeting via teleconference

must be fully accessible to members of the public and shall be listed on the agenda;*

e. Members of the public must be able to hear what is said during the meeting and shall be provided

with an opportunity to address the Board of Directors directly at each teleconference location; and

f. The agenda shall indicate that members of the public attending a meeting conducted via

teleconference need not give their name when entering the conference call.2

Section 7. ADJOURNMENT. A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is
present, may adjourn any Board of Directors meeting to another time or place. If a meeting is adjourned for more
than twenty-four (24) hours, notice of such adjournment to another time or place shall be given, prior to the time
schedule for the continuation of the meeting, to the directors who were not present at the time of the adjournment,

and to the public in the manner prescribed by any applicable public open meeting law.

ARTICLE X
OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION

Section 1. OFFICES HELD. The officers of this corporation shall be a President, a Secretary, and Chief
Financial Officer, who shall be known as the “Treasurer.” The corporation, at the Board’s direction, may also have a
Chairman of the Board, one or more Vice-Presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, one or more assistant treasurers,

and such other officers as may be appointed under Article X Section 4, of these bylaws.

Section 2. DUPLICATION OF OFFICE HOLDERS. Any number of offices may be held by the same
person, except that neither the Secretary nor the Treasurer may serve concurrently as either the President or the Chairman

of the Board.

Section 3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS. The officers of this corporation shall be chosen annually by the

Board of Directors and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 4. APPOINTMENT OF OTHER OFFICERS. The Board of Directors may appoint and authorize
the Chairman of the Board, the President, or another officer to appoint any other officers that the corporation may require.
Each appointed officer shall have the title and authority, hold office for the period, and perform the duties specified in the
bylaws or established by the Board.

Section 5. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS. Without prejudice to the rights of any officer under an

employment contract, the Board of Directors may remove any officer with or without cause.

* This means that members of the Board of Directors who choose to utilize their homes or offices as teleconference locations must
open these locations to the public and accommodate any members of the public who wish to attend the meeting at that location.
2 The Brown Act prohibits requiring members of the public to provide their names as a condition of attendance at the meeting.
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Section 6. RESIGNATION OF OFFICERS. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to
the Board. The resignation shall take effect on the date the notice is received or at any later time specified in the notice.
Unless otherwise specified in the notice, the resignation need not be accepted to be effective. Any resignation shall be

without prejudice to any rights of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party.

Section 7. VACANCIES IN OFFICE. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal,
disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for normal appointment to that

office, provided, however, that vacancies need not be filled on an annual basis.

Section 8. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. If a Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, he or she
shall preside at the Board of Directors’ meetings and shall exercise and perform such other powers and duties as the Board
of Directors may assign from time to time. If there is no President, the Chairman of the Board of Directors shall also be
the chief executive officer and shall have the powers and duties of the President of the corporation set forth in these
bylaws. If a Chairman of the Board of Directors is elected, there shall also be a Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors. In
the absence of the Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall preside at Board of Directors meetings and shall exercise and

perform such other powers and duties as the Board of Directors may assign from time to time.

Section 9. PRESIDENT. Subject to such supervisory powers as the Board of Directors may give to the
Chairman of the Board, if any, and subject to the control of the Board, the President shall be the general manager of the
corporation and shall supervise, direct, and control the Corporation’s activities, affairs, and officers as fully described in
any applicable employment contract, agreement, or job specification. The President shall preside at all Board of Directors’

meetings. The President shall have such other powers and duties as the Board of Directors or the bylaws may require.

Section 10. VICE-PRESIDENTS. If the President is absent or disabled, the Vice-Presidents, if any, in
order of their rank as fixed by the Board, or, if not ranked, a Vice-President designated by the Board, shall perform all
duties of the President. When so acting, a Vice-President shall have all powers of and be subject to all restrictions on the
President. The Vice-Presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors or

the bylaws may require.

Section 11. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the corporation’s principal
office or such other place as the Board of Directors may direct, a book of minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and actions
of the Board and of committees of the Board. The minutes of meetings shall include the time and place that the meeting
was held; whether the meeting was annual, regular, or special and, if special, how authorized; the notice given; and the

names of the directors present at Board of Directors and committee meetings.

The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal California office, a copy of the articles of

incorporation and bylaws, as amended to date.

The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board and of committees of the Board
of Directors that these bylaws require to be given. The Secretary shall keep the corporate seal, if any, in safe custody and

shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors or the bylaws may require.
Section 12. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained,
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adequate and correct books and accounts of the corporation’s properties and transactions. The Treasurer shall send or
cause to be given to directors such financial statements and reports as are required to be given by law, by these bylaws, or

by the Board. The books of account shall be open to inspection by any director at all reasonable times.

The Treasurer shall (a) deposit, or cause to be deposited, all money and other valuables in the name and to the
credit of the corporation with such depositories as the Board of Directors may designate; (b) disburse the corporation’s
funds as the Board of Directors may order; (c) render to the President, Chairman of the Board, if any, and the Board, when
requested, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the corporation; and (d) have such

other powers and perform such other duties as the Board or the bylaws may require.

If required by the Board, the Treasurer shall give the corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or
sureties specified by the Board of Directors for faithful performance of the duties of the office and for restoration to the
corporation of all of its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in the possession or under the

control of the Treasurer on his or her death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office.

Section 13. VICE-CHAIRMEN. One Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors will be assigned to each

county in which a charter school operated by the corporation is located.

ARTICLE XI
CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Section 1. CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS. In compliance with Government Code Section 1090 et
seq., the corporation shall not enter into a contract or transaction in which a director directly or indirectly has a
material financial interest (nor any other corporation, firm, association, or other entity in which one or more of the

Corporation’s directors are directors and have a material financial interest).

ARTICLE XII
CONTRACTS WITH NON-DIRECTOR DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES

Section 1. CONTRACTS WITH NON-DIRECTOR DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES. The Corporation
shall not enter into a contract or transaction in which a non-director designated employee (e.g., officers and other key
decision-making employees) directly or indirectly has a material financial interest unless all of the requirements in

the Corporation’s Conflict of Interest Code have been fulfilled.

Section 2. AGAINST NEPOTISM. If a member of an officer's or employee’s immediate family is to be
hired to work in a position directly subordinate or supervisory to the officer or employee, that fact should be disclosed
in advance to the Board of Directors so that a determination can be made whether to permit an exception to the

normal prohibition against nepotism.

ARTICLE XIII
LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS. This corporation shall not lend any money or
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property to or guarantee the obligation of any director or officer without the approval of the California Attorney General;
provided, however, that the corporation may advance money to a director or officer of the corporation for expenses
reasonably anticipated to be incurred in the performance of his or her duties if that director or officer would be entitled to

reimbursement for such expenses of the corporation.

ARTICLE XIV
INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. INDEMNIFICATION. To the fullest extent permitted by law, this corporation shall indemnify
its directors, officers, employees, and other persons described in Corporations Code Section 5238(a), including persons
formerly occupying any such positions, against all expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually
and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any “proceeding,” as that term is used in that section, and including
an action by or in the right of the corporation by reason of the fact that the person is or was a person described in that

section. “Expenses,” as used in this bylaw, shall have the same meaning as in that section of the Corporations Code.

On written request to the Board of Directors by any person seeking indemnification under Corporations Code
Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) the Board of Directors shall promptly decide under Corporations Code Section 5238
(e) whether the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Corporations Code Section 5238 (b) or Section 5238 (c) has

been met and, if so, the Board of Directors shall authorize indemnification.

ARTICLE XV
INSURANCE

Section 1. INSURANCE. This corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance to
the full extent permitted by law on behalf of its directors, officers, employees, and other agents, to cover any liability
asserted against or incurred by any director, officer, employee, or agent in such capacity or arising from the director’s,

officer’s, employee’s, or agent’s status as such.

ARTICLE XVI
MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS

Section 1. MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS. This corporation shall keep:
a. Adequate and correct books and records of account;
b. Written minutes of the proceedings of the Board and committees of the Board; and
c. Such reports and records as required by law.
ARTICLE XVII
INSPECTION RIGHTS
Section 1. DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO INSPECT. Every director shall have the right at any reasonable

time to inspect the corporation’s books, records, documents of every kind, physical properties, and the records of each

subsidiary as permitted by California and federal law. The inspection may be made in person or by the director’s agent or
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attorney. The right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts of documents as permitted by California and
federal law. This right to inspect may be circumscribed in instances where the right to inspect conflicts with California or
federal law (e.g., restrictions on the release of educational records under FERPA) pertaining to access to books, records,

and documents.

Section 2. ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND MINUTES. On written demand on the corporation, any
director may inspect, copy, and make extracts of the accounting books and records and the minutes of the proceedings of
the Board of Directors and committees of the Board of Directors at any reasonable time for a purpose reasonably related to
the director’s interest as a director. Any such inspection and copying may be made in person or by the director’s agent or

attorney. This right of inspection extends to the records of any subsidiary of the corporation.

Section 3. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS. This corporation shall
keep at its principal California office the original or a copy of the articles of incorporation and bylaws, as amended to the
current date, which shall be open to inspection by the directors at all reasonable times during office hours. If the
corporation has no business office in California, the Secretary shall, on the written request of any director, furnish to that

director a copy of the articles of incorporation and bylaws, as amended to the current date.

ARTICLE XVIII
REQUIRED REPORTS

Section 1. ANNUAL REPORTS. The Board of Directors shall cause an annual report to be sent to itself
(the members of the Board of Directors) within 120 days after the end of the corporation’s fiscal year. That report shall

contain the following information, in appropriate detail:

a. The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, or the corporation as of the end of the fiscal year;

b. The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds;

c. The corporation’s revenue or receipts, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes;

d. The corporation’s expenses or disbursement for both general and restricted purposes;

e. Any information required under these bylaws; and

f. An independent accountant’s report or, if none, the certificate of an authorized officer of the

corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the corporation’s books and

records.

Section 2. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND INDEMNIFICATIONS. As
part of the annual report to all directors, or as a separate document if no annual report is issued, the corporation shall,
within 120 days after the end of the corporation’s fiscal year, annually prepare and mail or deliver to each director and

furnish to each director a statement of any transaction or indemnification of the following kind:

a. Any transaction (i) in which the corporation, or its parent or subsidiary, was a party, (i) in which an
“interested person” had a direct or indirect material financial interest, and (iii) which involved more

than $50,000 or was one of several transactions with the same interested person involving, in the
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aggregate, more than $50,000. For this purpose, an “interested person” is either:

(1) Any director or officer of the corporation, its parent, or subsidiary (but mere common

directorship shall not be considered such an interest); or

(2) Any holder of more than 10 percent of the voting power of the corporation, its parent, or its
subsidiary. The statement shall include a brief description of the transaction, the names of
interested persons involved, their relationship to the corporation, the nature of their interest,
provided that if the transaction was with a partnership in which the interested person is a
partner, only the interest of the partnership need be stated.

b. The amount and circumstances of any indemnifications aggregating more than $10,000 paid during

the fiscal year to any director or officer of the corporation pursuant to Article XIV of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE XIX
BYLAW AMENDMENTS

Section 1. BYLAW AMENDMENTS. The Board of Directors may adopt, amend or repeal any of these
Bylaws by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present, except that no
amendment shall make any provisions of these Bylaws inconsistent with the corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, or any
laws. The Board of Directors may only amend these Bylaws provisions fixing the authorized number of directors or
establishing procedures for the nomination or appointment of directors by unanimous vote of all directors then in office.

This section may only be amended by the unanimous vote of the all the directors then in office.

ARTICLE XX
FISCALYEAR

Section 1. FISCAL YEAR OF THE CORPORATION. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on

July 15t and end on June 30t of each year.
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CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

I certify that I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Magnolia Educational & Research Foundation, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation; that these amended and restated bylaws, consisting of 15, pages, are the
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bylaws of this corporation as adopted by the Board of Directors on November,3, 2016; and that these amended and

restated bylaws have not been amended or modified since that date.
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